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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFEUBHE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial

statements is set out below:

AREREREMBFENEEREE &
ERFERESHR (RRACTBEZER
LM BHRE)EIMT :

RESULTS £
THE GROUP AEE
For the year ended 3| December
BZNA3NALEE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TET THT THT THT T
Turnover EER 82,518 510793 907,473 806,713 674,197
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(BE),/ &7 (52,118) (38,834) 12,883 92,706 90,076
(Loss)/profit attributable to: NTEIEER
(B#8),/&A:
Fquity holders of the Company AR AIEREE A (48,264) (40612) 13,117 93,050 89943
Non-controlling interests RS (3,854) 1778 (234) (344) 133
(52,118) (38834) 12,883 92,706 90,076
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS BE BERFERER
As at 3| December
RI12A318
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TET THT THT THT THT
Total assets nEE 452,446 247,123 429,087 438,964 344794
Total liabilities wefE 213817) (135,765) (369,542) (138,826) (103513)
Net assets EERE 238,629 111358 59,545 300,138 24128
Attributable to: AT &I E(G
Equity holders of the Company ~ AQA B RHEE A 227,040 109,247 57,320 298,869 239,640
Non-controlling interests FERER 11,589 2111 2225 1,269 | 641
238,629 111,358 59,545 300,138 241,281

EtREEXEXREBRRAA

“-xEEH O



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWR DN

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board” and the “Directors”) of Beijing Sports
and Entertainment Industry Group Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the
2016 Annual Report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December

2016.

BUSINESS AND OPERATION REVIEWS

The Group was listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange") on 16 January 2012 with business focus on the provision of air freight service
in the wholesale market. Due to keen competition and rising costs on operations, the
Group diversified into China's sports and entertainment related business. The Group
believes that sports and entertainment industry is promising in China as national policy
support and the hosting of major events such as Beijing Winter Olympic Games will drive

the development of the related industries.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group achieved approximately HK$82.5
million in revenue, representing a significant decrease of approximately 83.8% from that
of approximately HK$510.8 million during the same period of last year. Gross profit was
approximately HK$8.6 million, comparing to the gross profit of approximately HK$68.9
million during the corresponding period of last year. The overall gross profit ratio decreased
from approximately 13.5% to approximately 10.4%. Loss for the year attributable to
equity holders of the Company was approximately HK$48.3 million as compared to
approximately HK$40.6 million in the year end 31 December 2015. Basic loss per share
of the Company (“Share(s)") was approximately HK4.6 cents during the year. As at 3|
December 2016, the balance of cash and cash equivalents was approximately HK$306.4

million (31 December 2015: approximately HK$5 1.0 million).

During the vear ended 3| December 2016, the Group has implemented cost control
measures aiming to reduce staff costs and office rental and related expenses. Number of
employees was reduced from 105 as at 31 December 2015 to 70 as at 31 December
2016, However, weak cargo demand and over-capacity in the air cargo market continues to

put downward pressure on yield performance.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Notwithstanding the failure to comply with some of the restrictive financial covenant
requirements of certain banking facilities as disclosed in the annual report of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group had fully repaid its banking facility in
2016. As at the date of approving this annual report, the Group does not maintain any
banking facility with any bank in Hong Kong and in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC").

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the year ended 3|

December 2016 (2015: Nil per Share).

In the opinion of the Director, the Group will have sufficient financial resources to finance

its operations in the coming twelve months from the date of the balance sheet.

CHANGE IN LARGEST SHAREHOLDER

On 29 January 2016, Excellent Success Asia Limited entered into an agreement to transfer
100,000,000 Shares, representing approximately 10.60% of the entire issued Share
capital of the Company at the date of transfer to Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health
Industry Group Limited (“BEMH"). The transfer was completed on 18 March 2016 and
BEMH became the largest shareholder of the Company (“Shareholder(s)") which held
approximately 19.77% of the entire issued share capital of the Company at the date of this

report.

TERMINATION OF THE SALE AND PURCHASE AGREEMENT

On 23 September 2015, the Company, Vision Finance Group Limited and Mr. Zhang
Chengliang (the “Vendors") entered into the sale and purchase agreement (the “S&P
Agreement’”), pursuant to which the Company had conditionally agreed to purchase, and
the Vendors had conditionally agreed to sell the 5,000,000 shares in Vision Finance Asset
Management Limited (the “Vision Finance"), representing the entire issued share capital of
Vision Finance at a total cash consideration of HK$7,000,000. The Directors were of the
view that the acquisition could diversify the business of the Group with the objective of

broadening its sources of income.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWR DN

On 7 January 2016, after careful consideration of all the circumstances such as the volatility
of the capital market, the Company and the Vendors entered into a termination agreement

to terminate the S&P Agreement.

The Board considered that the termination of the S&P Agreement would not have any

material adverse impact on the financial position and operation of the Group.

References should be made to the announcements of the Company dated 23 September

2015 and 7 January 2016 for the details of the S&P Agreement.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

Pursuant to a special resolution passed in the extraordinary general meeting (‘EGM") held
on 24 May 2016, the English name of the Company was changed from “ASR Logistics
Holdings Limited” to “Beijing Sports and Entertainment Industry Group Limited" and
a new Chinese name "It REE XL EXEBEBR 2 A" was in place of the existing
Chinese name "B I RERER QA"

The Certificate of Incorporation on Change of Name of the Company was issued by
the Registry of Companies in the Cayman Islands on 25 May 2016 and the Certificate of
Registration of Alteration of Name of Registered Non-Hong Kong Company was issued by
the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong on 22 June 201 6.

On 24 June 2016, the Company announced that the stock short name for trading in the
Shares on the Stock Exchange will be changed from “ASR LOGISTICS" to “BJ SPORTS &
ENT" in English and from "B ¥ ¥R to “IL BB X4L" in Chinese with effect from
9:00 am. on 30 June 2016.The stock code of the Company with the Stock Exchange will

remain unchanged as “1803".

The Directors considered that the new English and the Chinese name could provide
the Company with a fresh identity and image which would benefit the Company's future
business development and is in the interest of the Company and its Shareholders as a

whole.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Reference should be made to the announcements of the Company dated 8 April 2016, the
circular of the Company dated 21 April 2016 and the announcements dated 24 May 2016
and 24 June 2016 for the details of the change of the Company's name and the trading

arrangement of the Shares.

CHANGE OF ADDRESS OF PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG
KONG

The Company announced that the address of the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong had changed to Room 101, 5/F, Greatmany Centre, | |1 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong with effect on 3 January 2017.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

Memorandum of Understanding in Relation to a Proposed Acquisition

On 9 March 2016, Beijing Sports Industry Group Limited ("Beijing Sports”), an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company at the date of the transaction, entered into a
memorandum of understanding (the “MOU") with two independent third parties, to
acquire 55% of equity interests in Beijing Si Bo You Sports Technology Company Limited.*
The preliminary consideration for the intended acquisition is RMB22 million and is
expected to be settled by Beijing Sports in cash. The MOU s not legally binding and had
been expired on 8 September 2016.

References should be made to the announcements of the Company dated 9 March 2016

and 8 September 2016 for the details of the MOU.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWR DN

Formation of Subsidiaries

On 2 June 2016, Zhong Hu Sports Culture Development (Beijing) Limited* (“Zhong
Hu Sports”), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company at the date of
the transaction, entered into an agreement with Beijing Dingfeng Ronghe Investment
Management Limited* (“Beijing Dingfeng") in respect of the formation of the company
Zhong Hu Dingfeng Sports Development (Beijing) Limited* (“Zhong Hu Dingfeng”)
which is principally engaged in the development, construction, investment and operation
of air dome for sport stadium and recreation facilities in the PRC. Under the agreement,
the parties agreed that, Zhong Hu Dingfeng shall be established and shall be held as to
60% by Zhong Hu Sports and 40% by Beijing Dingfeng. Zhong Hu Dingfeng shall have a
registered capital of RMB5,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,990,000), which
shall be contributed by Zhong Hu Sports and Beijing Dingfeng as to RMB3,000,000 in cash
(equivalent to approximately HK$3,594,000) and RMB2,000,000 in cash (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,396,000), respectively.

Pursuant to the agreement, Zhong Hu Dingfeng was established in the PRC on 22 July
2016.

On 29 July 2016, Zhong Hu Yuedong Culture Media (Beijing) Limited* (“Zhong Hu
Yuedong), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the
agreement with Beijing Zhongying Shengjia Cinema Development Limited* (“Beijing
Zhongying") in respect of the formation of the company Beijing Zhong Hu Shengjia
Cutture Development Limited* (“Zhong Hu Shengjia”) which is principally engaged in
the operation of movie theatres in the third and fourth tier cities in the PRC. Under
the agreement, the parties agreed that, Zhong Hu Shengjia shall be established and shall
be held as to 65% by Zhong Hu Yuedong and 35% by Beijing Zhongying. Zhong Hu
Shengjia shall have a registered capital of RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$23,200,000), which shall be contributed by Zhong Hu Yuedong and Beijing Zhongying
as to RMBI13,000,000 in cash (equivalent to approximately HK$15,080,000) and
RMB7,000,000 in cash (equivalent to approximately HK$8,120,000) respectively.

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, Zhong Hu Yuedong and Beijing Zhongying
mutually agreed that there would be an observation period for three months after the
operation of the first theatre by the Zhong Hu Shengjia. Before the expiration of the
observation period, Zhong Hu Yuedong shall have the right to terminate the agreement,
and Beijing Zhongying shall unconditionally repurchase the shareholding interest held by
Zhong Hu Yuedong at the consideration of RMBI3,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$15,080,000), being the actual capital contribution by Zhong Hu Yuedong when

entering into of the agreement.

Pursuant to the agreement, Zhong Hu Shengjia was established in the PRC on 15 August
2016 and the first theatre, operated by the direct wholly owned subsidiary of Zhong
Hu Shengjia namely Beijing Zhong Hu Tianjie Cinema Management Limited* (Zhong Hu

Tianjie"), was commenced its business on December 2016.

On 21 March 2017, Zhong Hu Yuedong decided to exercise the rights pursuant to the

agreement and terminate the agreement accordingly.

References should be made to the announcements of the Company dated on 2 June 2016,

and 29 July 2016 for the details of the formation of these subsidiaries.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not make any other significant investment during

the year under review.

*  For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWR DN

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Subscription of New Shares under General Mandate

On 5 February 2016, the Company and About Capital Management (HK) Co, Limited
(the “Subscriber”) entered into the subscription agreement pursuant which the Company
had conditionally agreed to allot and issue, and the Subscriber had conditionally agreed
to subscript for 30,370,000 Shares at the subscription price of HK$0.65 per Share
(the “Subscription”). The Subscription was completed on 25 February 2016. A total of
30,370,000 Subscription Shares were allotted and issued on 25 February 2016 with a net
proceeds of approximately HK$19,680,000 was received by the Company on the same
date.

The utilization of the net proceeds from the Subscription as at 31 December 2016 is

summarized as follows:

BEEE

BRE-REEIBHRG

R2016F2A50  REBEBHER (FH)
BERAR ([RBAHITLRERZE Bt
ARBEERERERERET MRBAH
EEBRERERERRM06SB T ZRERE
FFE303700008% M7 ([RIEBE]) - RBSH
TER2016F2A258 FEAK ° 2016527258
& #£30370,0000% R BB AR 19 AL B R 31T |k
RN AP R B B AR 15 5K 385 B8 49 19,680,000
AT

P2016F12A31 B REBEEE FTEHUE TR
ZEAB RN

Intended Use of Net Proceeds from the Subscription

REBREZAERAFEZETEAR

Actual use of net proceeds from the Subscription

RREREZAERRFECERAR

- for general working capital and for future potential acquisitions - Fully utilized on the formation of the Zhong Hu

and/or other investment opportunities Dingfeng and Zhong Hu Shengjia in the PRC as

- FE—REBESRARKREERBR SEMBEERS set out in the section with heading “Formation of
Subsidiaries” on page 10 of this annual report

- BEANNPERITERERTERRE (HN
AEHREIE [HIMBAR ] —EFTH)

References should be made to the announcements of the Company dated 5 February
2016 and 25 February 2016 for the details of the Subscription.

Placing of New Shares under Specific Mandate

On 8 June 2016, the Company and Vision Finance International Company Limited (the
“Placing Agent") entered into the placing agreement, pursuant to which the Company has
conditionally agreed to place through the Placing Agent, on a best effort basis, 200,000,000
placing Shares. (“Placing”) The Placing Shares are expected to be placed by the Placing
Agent to not less than six placees, who and whose ultimate beneficial owner(s) (if

applicable) shall be independent third parties, at a price of HK$0.7 per Placing Share.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Placing Agent is held indirectly as to 36.75% by the spouse of Mr. Hu Yebi, the
executive Director and a Shareholder holding approximately 9.57% of existing issued share
capital of the Company and as such, the Placing Agent is an associate of Mr. Hu Yebi and is
a connected person of the Company. Accordingly, the payment of the placing commission
to the Placing Agent constitutes a connected transaction of the Company under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules™) on the Stock Exchange. Since the
applicable percentage ratio (other than the profits ratio) set out in Rule 14A.76(2) of the
Listing Rules in respect of the commission payable to the Placing Agent in the amount of
HK$3.5 million is less than 5%, the payment of the placing commission to the Placing Agent
constitutes an exempt connected transaction and is exempt from the circular (including
independent financial advice) and Shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to
Chapter |4A of the Listing Rules. Further, each of Mr Liu Xueheng (being the Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer and executive Director) and Mr. Niu Zhongjie (being the executive
Director and a Shareholder holding approximately 4.94% of the existing issued share
capital of the Company) holds a 5.25% equity interest in the Placing Agent, respectively. Mr.
Hu Yebi, Mr: Liu Xueheng and Mr. Niu Zhongjie have abstained and are required to abstain
from voting in respect of the proposed resolutions for approving the placing agreement

and the transaction contemplated thereunder at the Board meeting.

The Placing was completed on 15 August 2016. A total of 200,000,000 Placing Shares
were allotted and issued on |5 August 2016 with a net proceeds of HK$ 136,500,000 was

received by the Company on the same date.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWR DN

The utilization of the net proceeds from the Placing as at 31 December 2016 is

summarized as follows:

R2016512A31 8 - BEE BIE 2 5 FIRFE
ZEABE AR

Intended Use of Net Proceeds from the Placing Actual use of net proceeds from the Placing
RESRZAEREFECRERR RESEZRERRFECERAR

- approximately HK$60 million to be used for development of air dome -
business for sport and other recreation use in the PRC;

- #960000000E TR B IER P EREERE RABARAEZR
BE% -

- approximately HK$35 million for repayment of Shareholder's loan;
—  #935000000/8 T A fEEERRER -

- approximately HK$ 15 million for operational needs of logistic-related

business;

S #915,0000008 TCAEY RABBE K o 2 EE K

7N

- approximately HK$ 15 million for future investment opportunities in
sport-related business in the PRC when opportunities arise; and

—  #3150000008 TRHE LR AR T EREEARE AR
BB &

- the remaining balance of approximately HK$1 | million for general
working capital of the Group
- BEHI1000000BTREAEE -REEES

References should be made to the announcements of the Company dated 8 June 2016,

7 July 2016, 29 July 2016 and 15 August 2016; and the circular dated 7 July 2016 for the
details of the Placing.

SHAREHOLDER’S LOANS

In order to strengthen the liquidity of the Group, the Company (the “Borrower”)
entered into two Shareholder's loan agreements with Hollyview International Limited
(the “Lender”), a substantial shareholder of the Company, on 10 November 2015
(the “Hollyview Loan Agreement”) and 24 November 2015 (the “Hollyview Facility
Agreement”) (together the “First Shareholder’s Loan Agreement’’).

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
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approximately HK$35 million for repayment of
Shareholder's loan as set out in the section with
heading “Shareholder’s Loan" below;
#)35,0000007% 7C A EEE R & 50 (AT X
[RRER| —HME)

approximately HK$ 15 million for the development of
air dome stadiums and recreation facilities in Fangshan
District of Beijing named Jiazhou Shuijun ( 117k
#8) Zhong Hu Dingfeng as set out in the section with
heading “Formation of Subsidiaries”,
#715,0000007% 7 F IO B (Gt [ B 3L Y
DR —HAE) B RE L EE SN KE
ZRIREE R IR R

approximately HK$ | | million for general working
capital of the Group such as purchase of furnitures

& fixtures, renovations, payment of rental deposits,
salaries and wages for the headquarter located in
Beijing

#711,0000008 TRIFAKEZ —REEE S fl
mitr@RBEERANREE B HESR
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ERLEEFEHE HE F2HAQRHESA
201656 A8H 2016778 ~2016F7H29H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Pursuant to the Hollyview Loan Agreement, the Lender agreed to lend HK$5,000,000 to
the Borrower at the interest rate of 2.5% per annum which was determined after arm'’s
length negotiations between the parties by reference to the then prevailing bank lending
interest rate. The Hollyview Loan Agreement was due on the second anniversary of the
Hollyview Loan Agreement if not paid earlier. The Lender could request the Borrower to

pay the loan amount and accrued interest on demand.

Pursuant to the Hollyview Facility Agreement, the Lender agreed to lend to the Borrower
from time to time such amount or amounts, not to exceed an aggregate outstanding
principal amount of HK$30,000,000 at any time, as it may have required to meet its day-to-
day operational expenses and working capital needs at the interest rate of 2.5% per annum
which was determined after arm's length negotiations between the parties by reference
to the then prevailing bank lending interest rate. The loan under the Hollyview Facility
Agreement was due on the second anniversary of the Hollyview Facility Agreement if not
paid earlier. The Lender could request the Borrower to pay the loan amount and accrued

interest on demand.

The loans of HK$35,000,000 pursuant to the First Shareholder's Loan Agreements were
fully repaid in August 2016 by the Borrower to the Lender as set out in the section with
heading “Placing of New Shares under Specific Mandate"on pages |2 to |4 of this annual

report.

On 16 December 2016, the Borrower entered into a new shareholder’s loan agreement
with the Lender for HK$ 175,000,000 at the interest rate of 3.0% per annum (the “Second
Shareholder’s Loan Agreement”) which was determined after arm's length negotiations

between the parties by reference to the then prevailing bank lending interest rate.

As the Lender was the substantial shareholder of the Company, the loans under the
Second Shareholder's Loan Agreement constituted connected transactions in the form
of financial assistance in favour of the Group. However, as the loans under the Second
Shareholder's Loan Agreement were not secured by any assets of the Group, and were
provided on normal commercial terms, the loan was fully-exempted from Shareholders'
approval, annual review and all disclosure requirements under the Chapter [4A of the

Listing Rules pursuant to Rule 14A.90.

On 23 March 2017, the Lender has agreed not to demand repayment of the loan principal

and interest accrued before 16 December 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWE D

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Discloseable Transaction in relation to the Capital Injection into MetaSpace (Beijing) Air
Dome Corp.*

On 16 January 2017, the Company announced that Zhong Hu Sports Culture
Development (Beijing) Limited*, an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
at the date of the transaction, entered into an agreement with MetaSpace (Beijing) Air
Dome Corp.* (the “Target Company”) in relation to the capital injection into the Target
Company (the “MetaSpace Agreement”).

The Target Company is a company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability and is
listed on the National Equities Exchange and Quotations Company (“NEEQC") in 2014,
also known as the “Third Board").

Pursuant to the MetaSpace Agreement, the Company shall inject a sum of
RMB140,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$156,800,000) in cash into the Target
Company by subscription of new ordinary shares issued by the Target Company. Thereafter,
the Target Company will become an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group;

and will be consolidated in the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Since certain of the applicable percentage ratios of the MetaSpace Agreement exceed 5%
but are less than 25%, the MetaSpace Agreement constitutes a discloseable transaction for
the Company for the purposes of, and are subject to the reporting and announcement

requirements under, Chapter 4 of the Listing Rules.

Reference should be made to the announcement of the Company dated 17 January 2017

for the details of the MetaSpace Agreement.

* For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Acquisition of the Remaining 40% Shareholding of Zhong Hu Dingfeng

On 17 January 2017, Zhong Hu Sports and Beijing Dingfeng entered into a share transfer
agreement pursuant to which Zhong Hu Sports had agreed to purchase and Beijing
Dingfeng had agreed to sell 40% shareholding interest in Zhong Hu Dingfeng at the
consideration of RMB2,000,000. Upon completion of the share transfer agreement, Zhong

Hu Dingfeng will become an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Group.

The share transfer agreement was subsequently completed in February 2017.

Shareholder’s Loans Received in March 2017
In March 2017, the Company entered into three new Shareholder’s loan agreements in the

following terms and amounts:—
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R2017F38  RRARIE TG M & BRI

B RE SR -

Interest rate

Date Lender Loan Amount (per annum)
A 9] EREH FRR
I5 March 2017 W Capital Management Limited HK$20,000,000 4.8%
201743/ 150 W Capital Management Limited 20,000,000/ 7T 4.8%
[6 March 2017 Vision Finance Group Limited HK$20,000,000 4.8%
2017%3R16H EEEREBEERAT 20,000,000 7T 4.8%
|7 March 2017 Vision Finance Active Investment Limited HK$48,000,000 4.8%
2017F3A717R Vision Finance Active Investment Limited 48,000,000/ 7T 4.8%

The interest rate was determined after arm's length negotiations between the parties by
reference to the then prevailing bank lending interest rate. These three new Shareholder’s
loans will be due on the second anniversary if not paid earlier. The lenders could request

the Company to pay the loan amount and accrued interest on demand.

As the lenders were the substantial shareholders of the Company, these loans constituted
connected transactions in the form of financial assistance in favour of the Group. However,
as these loans were not secured by any assets of the Group, and were provided on
normal commercial terms, these loans were fully-exempted from Shareholders” approval,
annual review and all disclosure requirements under the Chapter 4A of the Listing Rules

pursuant to Rule 14A.90.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWE D

PROSPECT

In view of the challenging economic and business environment, the management of
the Group continued to review its existing businesses from time to time and strived to

improve the business operation and financial position of the Group.

In this regards, on 16 January 2017, the Group announced the proposed capital injection
into MetaSpace (Beijing) Air Dome Corp,, a company listed on the NEEQC in 2014. Upon
completion of this investment, this subsidiary will generate stable and continuous income

and cash flow to the Group.

It has been the business strategy of the Group to proactively seek potential investment
opportunities in order to enhance value of the Shareholders.The Directors consider that it
is beneficial for the Group to seek suitable investment opportunities from time to time to
diversify its existing business portfolio into new line of business with growth potential and

to broaden its source of income.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Revenue

For the year under review, the Group achieved approximately HK$82.5 million in revenue,
representing a significant decrease of approximately 83.8% from that of approximately
HK$510.8 million during the same period of last year. The huge drop in revenue was
mainly attributable to the weak air cargo demand and over-capacity in the air cargo market

during the year under review.

Gross Profit

For the year ended 31 December 2016, overall gross profit of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$8.6 million (2015: approximately HK$68.9 million). The substantial
decrease in the Group's gross profit of approximately 87.5% when compared with the
same period last year was mainly due to the decrease in yield attributable to the pressure

of overcapacity in the air cargo markets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Administrative Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group's administrative expenses amounted
to approximately HK$58.1 million (2015: approximately HK$79.4 million), representing a
decrease of approximately 26.8% when compared with the same period last year, which
accounted for approximately 70.4% of the Group's turnover (2015: approximately |5.5%).
The decrease in administrative expenses is not in line with the decrease in revenue for
the year ended 31 December 2016 because there are one-off expenses such as the
share base payment expenses; and the pre-operating expenses and costs incurred for the
development of a series of the sports and entertainment businesses in the PRC which

were not available in the same period last year

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing Ratio

The Group’s net cash outflow from operating activities for the year amounted to
approximately HK$15.2 million (2015: approximately HK$64.9 million). As at 31 December
2016, cash and cash equivalents amounted to approximately HK$306.4 million which
represents a net increase of approximately HK$255.4 million as compared with the
position as at 31 December 2015.The substantial increase in cash and cash equivalents is
mainly due to the injection of Shareholder's loan of HK$175 million and the net proceeds
from Placing of HK$136.5 million as set out in the sections with headings “Shareholder’s

Loans" and “Placing of New Shares under Specific Mandate” of this annual report.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any outstanding bank borrowings (2015:
approximately HK$25.1 million). The gearing ratio (which is calculated by dividing total bank
borrowings by total assets) was nil (2015: approximately 0.102). During the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2016, the Group did not hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had current assets of approximately HK$337.3
million (2015: approximately HK$139.6 million) and current liabilities of approximately
HK$212.8 million (2015: approximately HK$135.6 million). The current ratio (which is
calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities) was approximately .58 (2015:

approximately 1.03).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWR DN

Capital Expenditure
The Group's capital expenditure was approximately HK$ 15,052,000 (2015: approximately
HK$2,807,000), representing the purchase of leasehold improvement, office equipment,

and furniture and fixtures of the Group during the year under review.

Contingent Liabilities and Guarantees
As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any contingent liability or guarantee
(2015: approximately HK$3 1.7 million).

Operating Lease Commitments
As at 31 December 2016, the Group had operating leases commitments of approximately

HK$115.8 million (2015: approximately HK$8.2 million).

Foreign Currency Exposure

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to Renminbi and United States dollar: Foreign exchange risk arises
from future commercial transactions, recognized assets and liabilities. During the year
under review, the Group had not hedged its foreign exchange risk because the exposure,
after netting off the gain and loss derived from foreign exchange difference, was not very
significant. Our management will continue to monitor our foreign exchange exposure and

will consider hedging the foreign currency exposure when it is necessary.

Charge on Group Assets

As at 31 December 2016 and as at the date of this annual report, the Group does not
pledge any of its assets to secure any banking facilities granted to the Group (2015:
approximately HK$19,993,000).

LITIGATIONS

As at 31 December 2016 and as at the date of this annual report, the Group had no
pending litigation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

POSSIBLE RISK EXPOSURE
Credit Risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk with exposure spread over a
large number of counterparties and customers. The carrying amounts of bank balances,
trade receivables and other receivables represent the Group's maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to financial assets. The Group will review and monitor the level of
exposure to ensure that follow-up actions are taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
at the end of each reporting year, the recoverability of each trade debt is evaluated so as to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,

the Directors are of the view that the Group does not expose to significant credit risk.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high

credit-ratings.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact of rate changes on interest-
bearing financial assets, mainly the interest-bearing bank balances. The Group monitors
the interest rate exposure on a continuous basis and adjusts the portfolio of bank saving

balances and borrowings where necessary.

Liquidity Risk
The Group is exposed to minimal liquidity risk as a substantial portion of its financial assets
and financial liabilities are due within one year and it can finance its operations from existing

shareholders’ funds and internally generated cash flows.

For the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level of bank balances and cash
deemed adequate to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effect of fluctuations
in cash flows. The Group monitors current and expected liquidity requirements on a

regular basis.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWR DN

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES
As at 31 December 2016, the Group had 70 full-time employees (2015: 105) in Hong

Kong and the PRC.The Group reviews remuneration and benefits of its employees annually

according to the relevant market practice and individual performance of the employees.

The emolument of each of the Directors and the employees of the Group is on the basis
of their merit, qualification, competence and experience in the industry, the profitability
of the Group as well as remuneration benchmarks from other local and international
companies and prevailing market conditions. Directors and employees also participate in
bonus arrangements which are determined in accordance with the performance of the

Group and the individual's performance.

In addition, the Company has adopted a share option scheme as incentives to Directors
and eligible persons, details of the scheme as set out in the section with heading “Share

Option Scheme™ on pages 33 to 38 of this annual report.

Save for the social insurance in China and the mandatory provident fund scheme in
Hong Kong, the Group has not set aside or accrued any significant funds to provide for
retirement or similar benefits for its employees. The staff costs (excluding director’s and
chief executive's remuneration) incurred for the year were approximately HK$30.5 million

(2015: approximately HK$45.0 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

KEY RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group keeps a high standard in selecting reputable and reliable suppliers, in order to
meet our own quality, safety, environmental and product criteria. During the year end 3|
December 2016 and up to the date of this report, the Group maintained good relationship
with its suppliers. The Group also has a well-established business relationship with the

customers.

During the year under review, there was no dispute on salary payments and all accrued
remunerations, at all kinds, were settled on or before their respective due dates, as
stipulated under individual employee's employment contract. The Group also ensures
that all the employees are reasonably remunerated by regular review and the policies
on salary increment, promotion, bonus, allowances and all other related benefits are
updated from time to time. For details, please refer to the section headed “Employees
and Remuneration Policies” of this annual report, Being people-oriented, the Group is
committed to providing a safe and healthy workplace for its employees and encourages

them to have a work-life balance.

In view of the above and as at the date of this annual report, there is no circumstance of
any event which will have a significant impact on the Group's business and on which the

Group's success depends.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend to Shareholders for
the year The declaration, payment, and amount of future dividends will be decided by the
Board and will depend upon, among other things, the Group's result of operations, capital
requirements, cash flows, general financial conditions, and such other factors as the Board

may consider important.

APPRECIATION

The Board would like to express our appreciation to our Shareholders, customers, banks
and business partners for their continuous trust and support, and also to all of our staff for
their dedicated efforts in facilitating the Group's business restructuring and perseverance in

fact of challenges.

Liu Xue Heng
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong
28 March 2017
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

The Directors present the Directors’ report and the audited consolidated financial

statements of the Group for the year ended 3| December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in the investments in the sports and entertainment related industry in the PRC; and the

provision of air freight services in the wholesale market.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of these activities as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) can be found in the sections with
headings of “Management Discussion and Analysis”, and “Five-Year Financial Summary”
set out on pages 6 to 23 and page 5 of this annual report respectively. Description of the

risks and uncertainties facing the Company can be found throughout this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group believes that sustainable development is an integral part of our business. We
aim at creating long-term values for our stakeholders and contributing to the society by
carrying out our business in a socially responsible way. The Group is committed to support
the environmental sustainability and comply with PRC national, provincial and municipal
governments’ environmental protection laws and regulations. The Company is also
dedicated to promote energy conservation and responding proactively to climatic changes,
so as to facilitate efficient use of energy by taking several measures including constantly
carries out internal recycling measures in terms of its consumables (e.g. Toner cartridge
and paper) and implementing energy-saving policies to reduce electricity consumption, in
order to lessen the impact on environment from operating activities to achieve the target

of sustainable development.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company's subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 are set out in note | to the

consolidated financial statements.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 3| December 2016 are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income on pages 72

and 73 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend in respect of current

year to the Shareholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the date of this report, the Group
complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in the mainland China and Hong Kong

that have a significant impact on the Group.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

Pursuant to a special resolution passed in the EGM held on 24 May 2016, the English name
of the Company was changed from “ASR Logistics Holdings Limited” to “Beijing Sports
and Entertainment Industry Group Limited” and a new Chinese name "It BB L E
EE£BAMR DT was in place of the existing Chinese name “BEMRIZRBR AT

CHANGE OF ADDRESS OF PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

The Company announced that the address of the Company's principal place of business in
Hong Kong had changed to Room 101, 5/F, Greatmany Centre, | || Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong with effect on 3 January 2017.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Group's property, plant and equipment during the year are set

out in note |12 to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
The values of the investment properties as at 31 December 2016 were measured using
the cost model, details of which are set out in note |3 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years

is set out on page 5 of this annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited

financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out in

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity on pages 76 and 77 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, accumulated loss of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$209.1 million (2015: approximately HK$189.0 million). Under section 34 of the
Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands, the share premium is available for
distribution to the Shareholders subject to the provisions of the articles of association of
the Company, and no distribution may be paid to the Shareholders out of the Company's
share premium unless the Company shall be able to pay its debt as they fall due in the

ordinary course of business.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in ordinary Shares of the Company during the year are set out in

note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles of association of the
Company (the “Article of Association”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands where the

Company is incorporated.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its Shares during the year. Neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company's Shares for the year

ended 3| December 2016,

Other than the share option schemes of the Company as disclosed below, neither the
Company nor its subsidiaries had issued or granted any convertible securities, options,
warrants or similar rights or exercised any rights in relation to convertible securities,

options, warrants or similar rights during the year ended 31 December 2016.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted
for approximately 25.9% of the total sales for the year and sales to the Group's largest
customer included therein accounted for approximately 8.8% of total sales for the year.
Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 58.9% of
the total purchases for the year and purchases from the Group's largest supplier included

therein accounted for approximately 16.8% of total purchases for the year

At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which,
to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company's issued share

capital) had any interest in the Group's five largest suppliers and customers.

BANK BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any outstanding bank borrowing (2015:
approximately HK$25.1 million)

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any finance lease lability (2015:
approximately HK$0.1 million)
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the vear and up to the date of this report are as

follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Xue Heng (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 25 January 2016)

Mr: Hu Yebi

Mr. Niu Zhongjie

Mr: Zhu Shixing

Mr: Lam KaTak

Mr. Zhang Tiagzhe (appointed on 25 January 2016)

M Tsui Ngai, Eddie (appointed on 20 July 2016)

Ms. Leung Pui Man (resigned on 18 May 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr: Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming

Mr. Xin Luo Lin

Mr. Pan Lihui

MrTse Man Kit, Keith (appointed on 25 January 2016)

2
FARBEAREBHNARBERNT:

HITEE

BB R L (FEFTHAE)
(R2016F1 A25BEZR )

BB L4

HEERE

M EEE

MEELE

SREELE 4 (R2016F 1 A2SHERT)

BRI (FA20165F7A20H B T)

RMEL L (R2016F5H 18ABHT)

BUIBITEE

LERLE

FRMEHE

B ERE

B LA (201651 ASRERT)

Pursuant to articles 86(3), 87(1) and 87(2) and A42. of the Code on corporate 1R I& 4 B 5586(3) ~ 87(1) 87 A K LT 38
ARSI X E R ERTR ([REE
BT FEALLK BHEELRE FEEL
BRI A ERREE RFEMREEBER
ARAIEERRBFRE ([RRBFAE])
FER-FPMAEERESHNGERER
ERARAEERRBFEAEG FBEET-

governance practices as set out in appendix |4 to the Listing Rules (the “Corporate
Governance Code"), Mr: Hu Yebi, Mr. Niu Zhongjie, Mr. Tsui Ngai, Eddie, Mr: Lok Lawrence
Yuen Ming, and Mr: Xin Luo Lin shall retire from office at the forthcoming annual general
meeting ("AGM") of the Company. All of the above retiring Directors are eligible and will

offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

EEERE
ARBEZEEIANAFRFEOT6AR

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS

Biographies of Directors of the Group are set out on pages 60 to 64 of this annual report.
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ESERNED

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, change in the information of the Director ~ AR4% ETTARBISE 13.51B(1)#§ * B #1201 65 F
since the date of the interim report 2016 and up to the date of this annual report of the BEAURREZERARAAFRAS EF

Company is set out below:

Name of Directors

BRHOESHHN T

Details of Change

EEns 2HFE

Mr. Hu Yebi Resigned as an executive director of Bestway International Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 718) with effect from 28 October 2016.

B ELE B BERERARAR (—ARBZA EMHRR - RO 718) BITES - 52016
FI0ABARER-

Mr. Niu Zhongjie Appointed as an independent non-executive director of Gold- Finance Holdings Limited (stock code:
1462) since 3 February 2016.

FEERE B0I6F2 AR EBRERSHERERLDE (BRI 1462) WBUFMITES -

Mr. Lam Ka Tak

Mr. Xin Luo Lin

FRMEL

Appointed as an independent non-executive director, the chairman of the audit committee, and the
member of the remuneration committee of U Banquet Group Holding Limited (stock code: 1483) since
27 October 2016.

B2016FI0AV7E ERZTREERERRAMRAR (BHHLR: 1483) MBIULIFNTES
B ZBEIRAFMERENE -

Resigned as an independent non-executive director of Enerchina Holdings Limited, a company listed on
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 622) with effect from | June 2016.

BHEREEZERAERAR (—RARB XM EMHORF] - BRIDRS: 622) B IFNITES

B2016F6 R 1 BRER

Resigned as a non-executive director of Asia Capital Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 8295) with effect from 17 June 201 6.

BHEE R EARRDA (—RNBRA LM RE IR 8295) WIFMITESR - 52016
FOHITRRAER -

Resigned as an non-executive director of China Trends Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 8171) with effect from 6 May 2016.

BETEBBERARAR (—RRBRA ETMAE ROKK: 8I7DMIFERTES 8
2016F5HeH A -

EtREEXEXEBRRAA
—B-AFER
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr Lam Ka Tak and Mr Zhu Shixing, executive Directors, have entered into a service
contract with the Company on 24 December 2015 for a term of three vears unless
terminated by three months' notice in writing served by either party on the other or

payment in lieu.

Mr. Liu Xue Heng and Mr Zhang Tingzhe, executive Directors, have entered into a
service contract with the Company on 25 January 2016 for a term of three years unless
terminated by three months' notice in writing served by either party on the other or

payment in lieu.

Mr. Tse Man Kit, Keith, an independent non-executive Director; has entered into a
service contract with the Company on 25 January 2016 for a term of three years unless
terminated by three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other or

payment in lieu.

Mr. Tsui Ngai, Eddie, an executive Director, has entered into a service contract with the
Company on 20 July 2016 for a term of three years unless terminated by three months'

notice in writing served by either party on the other or payment in lieu.

Apart from the foregoing, no Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company

within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent nonexecutive Directors an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and

considers all the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

The Directors’ fees are subject to Shareholders' approval at general meetings; other
emoluments of the Directors are determined by the Board with reference to Directors
duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group as well as the

recommendation of the remuneration committee.

Details of the Directors’ and chief executives remuneration and the five highest paid
employees in the Group are set out on notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

There were no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, which subsisted at the end of the year or at any time

during the year ended 31 December 2016.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the
year ended 31 December 2016.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart from the Group's
business, which competes or competed or is or was likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the Group's business at any time during the year ended 31 December 2016

and up to and including the date of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debenture of the Company granted to any director
or their respective spouse or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them;
or was the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the directors of the Company to acquire such rights in

any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 23 — Loans from a Shareholder of this report, no other contracts
of significance in relation to the Group's business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the financial year under review or at any time during the

financial year under review.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at the date of this report, the interests of the Directors and chief executive in the
Shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance ("SFO")), as recorded in the register required
to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities by Directors of Listed Issuers as set

out in appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) are as follows:

EERFTETHAEBRKRYE HERG K EE
BRZERER KR

RAREHH EERERTHRABRARRS
HIEAREEE (E&REFRIEED ([#35
RIBERB)) EXVED) 2 AR FEA AL Er I RIR
B N HB RO FR AT E 2 B iRE
ERRIRER A AT MBI T AR R TESR
ST A ([RESF A ) ARG AN R N
R ST

INTEREST IN THE SHARES OF THE COMPANY RERXARBHER
Number of
underlying
Number of Shares held Approximately
Ordinary Shares pursuant to percentage of
(Note (1)) share options issued Share capital
EEET
REBRE &
EERYA BRZ B8
Name of Directors EE=fg Capacity and nature BAREE (M) HERHER BAl
M. Hu Yebi HHERE Corporate N 110,810,000 968,000 957%
Mr:Niu Zhongje GEERE Corporate N 56,800,000 968,000 494%
Mr: Liu Xue Heng (Note 2) 21254 (Fi) Beneficial Owner ERf = 9,680,000 083%
Mr. Zhang Tingzhe RESLE Beneficial Owner E = 968,000 0.08%
M. Lam KaTak HEEEE Beneficial Owner Ex = 968,000 0.08%
Mr. Tse Man K, Keith EipeFiH: Beneficial Owner - 968000 008%
Mr: Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming SEAEE Beneficial Owner = 968,000 0.08%
Mr. Xin Luo Lin FEMEL Beneficial Owner - 968000 008%
Mr.Pan Lihui BUBELE Beneficial Owner - 968,000 0.08%
Notes: Bt

(1) Interests in Shares of the Company stated above represent long positions.

(2)  MrLiu Xue Heng is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief executives of the Company or any
of their associates had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations which had been recorded in

the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO at the date of this report.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company's share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme') was conditionally
adopted by the written resolutions of the sole Shareholder of the Company passed on 3
December 201 |, pursuant to which the Board may, at its absolute discretion and on such
terms as it may think fit, grants share options to any employee(s) (whether full time or part
time including any Director) of any member of the Group at the exercise price for such
number of Shares as it may determine in accordance with the terms of the Share Option

Scheme.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Board to grant options to
selected eligible persons including employee(s) and Directors as incentives or rewards for
their contribution or potential contribution to the Group. The maximum number of Shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all share options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company must not exceed
10% of the Shares in issue on the date of approving the Share Option Scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme Limit"). As at |6 January 2012, being the date of listing of the Shares
on the Stock Exchange, the Share Option Scheme Limit was 40,000,000 per-subdivided

Shares.

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of share options
granted and to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company to any employee(s) (including cancelled, exercised and
outstanding options), in any |2-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1%

of the Shares in issue from time to time.
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Notwithstanding the foregoing, the maximum number of ordinary Shares in the capital of
the Company which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding share options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the total number of

ordinary Shares in the capital of the Company in issue from time to time.

A share option granted under the Share Option Scheme is personal to the grantee and
shall not be assignable or transferable. Share options do not counter rights on the holders

to dividends or to vote at Shareholders’ meetings.

On 7 December 2012, the Directors granted a total of 7,980,000 share options under the
Share Option Scheme to subscribe for an aggregate of 7,980,000 pre-subdivided Shares.
Owing to the share subdivision on 24 May 2013 (after adjustment for the subdivision of
Shares from nominal value of HK$0.01 per Share to HK$0.005 per Share in 2013), the
Share Option Scheme Limit was adjusted and the Directors were authorized to grant
share options to subscribe for up to 80,000,000 Shares in which 15,960,000 share options
(after adjustment) had been granted.

During the year 2014, 2,200,000 shares options and 6,860,000 shares options were being

cancelled and exercised respectively.

The remaining 6,900,000 share options were subsequently cancelled due to the mandatory
unconditional cash offer completed on 8 April 2015. No other share option was granted
during the year 2015 and the total number of Shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme was 64,040,000 Shares representing approximately 6.83% of the total
issued Shares capital of the Company as at 31 December 2015.

On 8 April 2016, the Directors granted a total of 58,500,000 share options to Directors
and employee under the Share Option Scheme to subscribe for an aggregate of

58,500,000 Shares.
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Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at an AGM of the Company held on |5 June
2016, the Company approved to refresh the Share Option Scheme Limit. Share options
previously granted under the Share Option Scheme or any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company (including options outstanding, cancelled, or lapsed or exercised in
accordance with the relevant scheme rules) shall not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the limit as refreshed. Apart from the Share Option Scheme, the Company has

no other share option scheme currently in force for the year under review.

On 15 June 2016, there are 58,500,000 outstanding share options, representing
approximately 6.04% of the total number of Shares in issue as at |5 June 2016. On the
basis of 968,230,000 Shares in issue as at the 5 June 2016, and taking into account
the outstanding 58,500,000 share options granted under the Share Option Scheme
to subscribe for up to a total of 58,500,000 Shares (the “Outstanding Options”), the
Company may grant share options to eligible participants conferring on them right to
subscribe for a total of up to 96,823,000 Shares which, when aggregated with 58,500,000
Shares that may be issued under the Outstanding Options (amounting to 155,323,000
Shares which represents approximately 16.04% of the total number of Shares in issue as
at 15 June 2016), is within the said limit of 30% of the total number of Shares in issue from

time to time as required under the Share Option Scheme.

On 12 December 2016, the Directors granted a total of 9,680,000 share options to
employee under the Share Option Scheme to subscribe for an aggregate of 9,680,000

Shares.

As at 31 December 2016, a total of 1,936,000 share options were forfeited due to
resignation of a Director and employee. The total number of outstanding share options was
66,244,000 which represent approximately 5.67% of the total number of Shares in issue as
at 31 December 2016.
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The Directors consider that the Company should refresh the Share Option Scheme
Limit so that the Company could have more flexibility to provide incentives to the eligible
participants of the Share Option Scheme by way of granting share options to them to
strive for the future development and success of the Group.The Directors further consider
that the refreshment of the Share Option Scheme Limit is in the interests of the Group
and the Shareholders as a whole because it enables the Company to reward appropriately

and motivate the eligible participants under the Share Option Scheme.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme at
any time during a period as the Board may determine but in any event shall not exceed 10
years from the date of grant. Save as determined by the Board and provided in the offer of
the grant of the relevant options, there is no minimum holding period before an option is

exercisable.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within twenty-one days inclusive of the
day on which such offer was made. The amount payable to our Company on acceptance of
the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.00. The exercise price is to be determined by
the Board provided always that it shall be at least the higher of (i) the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of
offer for the grant of the option, which must be a trading day; and (ii) the average closing
price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant, provided that the exercise

price shall in no event be less than the nominal amount of one Share.

The Shares Option Scheme will be expired on 2 December 2021 if not be terminated by
any general meeting earlier The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme is 5 years at the

report date.
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The following table disclosures movements in the Company's share options outstanding as
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TRBEERDFN20165F12831H B KRITE

at 3| December 2016; RRARIE 2 2%
Number of share options
BREYE
Exercise
Granted Exercised Forfeited price of
At | January during the during the during the At30June  Date of grant of Exercise period of share options
Name or category of participant 2016 Period Period Period 2016 share options share options HKS$ per Share
H2016E RABER RABR RAER RwoleE  RHBRE BRE BRETRE
#EFSREER 1818 B (i il 6H30H HH TEHE BRER
Directors:
Ex:
Mr. Liu Xue Heng - 9,680,000 - - 9680000 8April 2016 8-Apr-16 to 7-Apr-26 0764
fBfEEE 20165F4A8H 201654F8A 2202654878
Mr.Hu Yebi - 968,000 - - 968000  8April 2016 8-Apr-16 to 7-Apr-26 0.764
HEEEE 201654A8H 016F4A8A 2202654878
Mr.Niu Zhongjie - 968,000 - - 968000  8April 2016 8-Apr-16 to 7-Apr-26 0764
TEEEE 016F4A8H 016F4A8A 222654778
Mr:Lam KaTak - 968,000 - - 968000  8Apnl 2016 8-Apr-16 to 7-Apr-26 0764
REBLE 201654A8H 20165488 £2026F4A78
Mr. Zhang Tingzhe = 968,000 = = 968000  8Apnil 2016 8-Apr-16 to 7-Apr-26 0764
REREE 2016F4A8H 2016F4A8A Z2026F4A78
MrTse, Man Kit, Keith = 968,000 = = 968000 8 April 2016 8-Apr-16 to 7-Apr-26 0764
AXREE 20165478 201654788 £202654A7A
Mr. Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming - 968,000 - - 968000 8Apri 2016 8-Apr-16 to 7-Apr-26 0764
SEAKE 20165F4A8H 201654F8A 2202654878
MrXin Luo Lin - 968,000 - - 968000  8April 2016 8-Apr-16 to 7-Apr-26 0764
FEMEE 201654788 016F4A8A 2200654878
Mr: Pan Lihui - 968,000 - - 968000  8April 2016 8-Apr-16 to 7-Apr-26 0764
BUBLE 016F4A8H 016F4A8A 220265477
Ms. Leung Pui Man* - 968,000 - (968,000) - 8April20l6 8-Apr-16 to 7-Apr-26 0764
2ERL* 201654A8H 20165488 £2026F4A78
18,392,000 = (968,000) 17424000
Other employees: - 40,108,000 - (968,000) 39,140000 8 April 2016 8-Apr-16 to 7-Apr-26 0.764
HfbfES: 201654 A8H 2016F4A8AZ2026F4A78
- 9,680,000 - - 9,680,000 12 December 2016 12-Dec-16to | 1-Dec-26 1.386
WI6512A128 WI6FI12A12BE065F12A118
= 68,180,000 = (1936,000) 66,244,000
* Ms. Leung Pui Man resigned as an executive Director of the Company on 18 May 2016, e 2MEZTBER016F5AI8BFEARRE
WITES-
Notes: BeE:
(1) The vesting period of the share options granted on 8 April 2016 is: first 30% of the share () RI6F4A8EERE 2 BRETEINGEH

options granted will be vested in one year after 8 April 2016, second 40% of the share options
granted will be vested in two years after 8 April 2016 and remaining 30% of the share options
granted will be vested in three years after 8 April 2016.The share options are exercisable from
the vesting date until 7 April 2026.
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(2)  The vesting period of the share options granted on |2 December 2016 is: first 30% of the
share options granted will be vested in one year after |2 December 2016, second 40% of
the share options granted will be vested in two years after 12 December 2016 and remaining
30% of the share options granted will be vested in three years after 12 December 2016.The

share options are exercisable from the vesting date until | | December 2026.

(3)  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights or bonus

issues, or other similar changes in the Company's Share capital.

(4)  The closing prices of the Company's Shares immediately before the date on which the options
were granted during the year on 8 April 2016 and 12 December 2016 was HK$0.764 per
Share and HK$1.386 per Share, respectively.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES OR UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at the date of this report, the register of substantial Shareholders maintained under
Section 336 of the SFO shows that the Company had been notified of the following
substantial Shareholders’ interests and short positions, representing 5% or more of the

Company's issued share capital:

Q) RI6FENRNANBRHZEBRENENGE
A BHLR B 2 30%88 B 72016412
ANBB—FAER £ &L 240%H
IR AE R TA20165F 128 12 A MFRER B K&
TR Z30%EREER2016F 128 128%
“ERBE -BEREVEREBANEZRI06
F12A11BBRITE

() BREZITEEIRGEAHKRABITARK
ARBIIRA 2 B IR A E B i B2 o

@) AREBROREEAFEBRERD A
(201654888 R2016F 128 128 ) Bz Yo
BH R BER0764E T R B 138678 T

FERFREQRZBROBEBER D 2 EER
e

RAREBH BIEEH RS KD E3360%
FEZFERREZRMBER AARENE
THFEERFE ERRABEARNR 2B
TR ARS%EL A £

Number of
Underlying
Number of Shares held
Ordinary pursuant to
Shares share options Percentage
RiBRERE
FEREN
Name s EBERHE HBRROHE Bk
Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health tEBERREXEBERLA
Industry Group Limited (“BEMH") ([tEErER])
(Note (a)) (PH3E(a)) 231,000,000 = 19.77%
United Win International United Win International
Corporation (Note (a)) Corporation ( B15E(a) ) 231,000,000 = 19.77%
Hollyview International Limited (Note (b)) Hollyview International Limited
GEIGY 110,810,000 - 9.49%
Mr. Hu Yebi (Note (b)) TREF R KA (s (b)) 110,810,000 968,000 9.57%
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Notes:

(@)  BEMH s the sole shareholder of United Win International Corporation.

(b)  MrHuYebi is the sole beneficial shareholder of Hollyview International Limited.

Save as disclosed above, no person had registered an interest of a short position in the
shares and underlying shares or debentures of the Company that was required to be
recorded under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.

RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A summary of the related party and connected transactions entered into by the Group
during the vear ended 31 December 2016 is contained in note 33 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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RETIREMENT SCHEME

In the PRC, the Group contributes to social insurance on a monthly basis for its employees.
The Group has no further obligation for payment of post-retirement benefits to employees

beyond the aforesaid contributions made by the Group.

The Group also participates in mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in
Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
and are under the control of an independent trustee. Both the Group and its employees
are required to contribute 5% of the employees’ monthly salaries. The mandatory
contributions required to be made respectively by the Group and an employee are each
capped at HK$ 1,500 commenced from | June 2014. Members are entitled to |00% of the
employers’ mandatory contributions as soon as they are paid to the MPF Scheme but all
benefits derived from the mandatory contributions must be preserved until an employee

reaches the retirement age of 65 or in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director of the Company shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which
he/she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of histher office or
otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
officers arising out of corporate activities. The level of the coverage is reviewed annually.
The permitted indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required
by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
when the Directors’ report prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance with

section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Schemes of the Company as disclosed above, no equity-
linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that require
the Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares were entered into by the Company during the year or subsisted at year ended 3|
December 201 6.

DONATION

During the year, the Group did not make any charitable donation.
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TAX RELIEF RIERR

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to the Shareholders by AN &I A A 17 B IR 3R #58 B 7 i
reason of their holdings of the Shares. If the Shareholders are unsure about the taxation HEGZBERE RROEEE 746 W
implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or exercising of any rights in S BEARRBBRMIATEEM B BRG

relation to the Shares, they are advised to consult an expert. EREMPEI BB EER (IR &
EEEE S0

N

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT ARERE
Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the knowledge ~— RAANIREBEH REAR B 2 AR ER A RIE
of the Directors as at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed EEMA-B20F I HI6B MM LMK

public float of not less than 25% of the issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules ARR—E#F EmARUMETAS DK%

since the listing of the Shares on 16 January 2012. BETROZ ARFHRE -

MATERIAL LITIGATIONS AND ARBITRATIONS ERFRRABEE

During the year, the Group had no material litigation and arbitration. REF AEBRSNFARMPHEE-

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES FREE

The Group did not have any contingent liability as at 31 December, 2016, 20165128318 AEE W EAAERIR
aff-

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS BAAER

Details of the capital commitments of the Company is contained in note 32 to the ARBZEBREEZ #BEAN GRS T BRE

consolidated financial statements. FiaE32 ©
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to adopt corporate governance practices. The Company's
corporate governance principles and practices are set out in the corporate governance

report on pages 44 to 60 of this annual report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Messr. PricewaterhouseCoopers, who had acted as the auditor of the Company in the
preceding vears, retired as the auditor of the Company at the AGM on 15 June 2016, and
Messrs. Ernst & Young was appointed as the auditor of the Company on |5 June 2016.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been audited by Ernst & Young
who shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming
AGM. Having approved by the Board upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee,
a resolution to re-appoint Ernst & Young as the independent auditor of the Company and

to authorise the Board to fix its remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Liu Xue Heng
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong
28 March 2017
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report in the Company's

annual report for the year ended 31 December 201 6.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed itself to enhance the standard of corporate governance
practices and business ethics with the firm belief that they are essential for maintaining
and promoting investors” confidence and maximising Shareholders” returns. The Board
reviews its corporate governance practices from time to time in order to meet the
rising expectations of stakeholders and comply with increasingly stringent regulatory

requirements, and to fulfill its commitment to excellent corporate governance.

Beijing Sports and Entertainment Industry Group Limited (formerly known as “ASR
Logistics Holdings Limited") is incorporated in the Cayman Islands and has its shares
listing on the Stock Exchange on 16 January 2012 (the “Listing Date"). The corporate
governance rules applicable to the Company is on Corporate Governance Code as set out
in appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied
with the code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code from the Listing
Date until 31 March 2012 and with the revised Corporate Governance Code from | April
2012 until 31 December 2016 respectively, except for the deviations from code provisions

A2.1,A6.7 and D.| 4 of the Corporate Governance Code as described below.

Code Provision A.2.1

According to the code provision A2.1, the roles of the chairman and the chief executive
should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. During the year
ended 31 December 2016, Mr. Liu Xue Heng is both the chairman of the Board and the
chief executive officer of the Company. The Board considered that Mr. Liu Xue Heng has
in-depth knowledge and experience in the sports and entertainment related business in
the PRC; and he is the most appropriate person. Notwithstanding the above, the Board
will review the current structure from time to time.When at the appropriate time and if
candidate with suitable leadership, knowledge, skills and experience can be identified within

or outside the Group, the Company may make necessary arrangements.
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Code Provision A.6.7

Under Code Provision A.6.7, independent non-executive Directors and other
non-executive Directors should attend general meetings to develop a balanced
understanding of the views of Shareholders. During the year, not all independent non-
executive Directors attended general meetings of the Company due to other business

engagements, which have deviated from Code Provision A.6.7.

Code Provision D.1.4

Under the code provision D.1.4, the Company should have formal letters of appointment
for Directors setting out the key terms and conditions of their appointment. The Company
did not sign formal letters of appointment with Mr. Hu Yebi, Mr. Niu Zhongjie, Mr: Lok
Yuen Ming, Mr. Xin Luo Lin and Mr. Pan Lihui. However, the said Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years in accordance with the Articles of
Association. In addition, the said Directors are required to refer to the guidelines set out
in “A Guide on Directors’ Duties” issued by the Companies Registry and “Guidelines
for Directors” and “Guide for Independent Non-executive Directors” (if applicable)
published by the Hong Kong Institute of Directors in performing their duties and

responsibilities as Directors of the Company.

The Company reviews its corporate governance practices from time to time to ensure

compliance Corporate Governance Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company and oversees
the Group's businesses, strategic decisions and performances. Presently, the company
secretary is responsible for ensuring that all Directors are properly briefed, either by her
or by members of the Company's senior management, on issues arising at the Board
meetings. The Board delegates its authority and responsibilities to the senior management
for the day-to-day management and operations of the Group. Approval has to be obtained
from the Board prior to any significant transactions being entered into by the senior

management.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information in relation to the
Company as well as the advices and services of the company secretary, if and when
required, with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules and

regulations are followed.
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There are established procedures for Directors to seek independent professional advices
for them to discharge their duties and responsibilities, where appropriate, at the Company's

expense.

BOARD COMPOSITION

As at 31 December 2016 and up to the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
seven executive Directors and four independent non-executive Directors from different
business and professional fields. The profile of each Director is set out in the “Biographies
of Directors’ section in this annual report. The Directors, including the independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective delivery of the

Board functions.

The Company has received an annual written confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive Directors of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-executive Directors to be

independent.

The independent non-executive Directors are appointed for specific terms and their terms
of office shall expire at the third AGM of the Company after the last appointment and may
be renewed subject to the Shareholders” approval at such AGM. Under the Articles of
Association, at each AGM one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number
is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not greater than one-third) shall
be subject to retirement by rotation. Retiring Directors are eligible for re-election at the
AGM at which they retire. Also, under the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code, every Director; including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to

retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

At the forthcoming AGM, Mr. Hu Yebi, Mr. Niu Zhongjie, Mr. Tsui Ngai, Eddie, Mr. Lok
Lawrence Yuen Ming, and Mr. Xin Luo Lin will retire as Directors and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-election.

The family relationships among the Board members, if any, are disclosed under

"Biographies of Directors” section in this annual report.
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LIABILITY INSURANCE OF DIRECTORS

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage in respect of legal action
against for Directors in compliance with code provision A.1.8. The insurance coverage is

reviewed on an annual basis.

BOARD DIVERSITY
The Board has adopted a board diversity policy with effect from 30 August 2013 and

discussed all measurable objectives set for implementing the policy. The Company
recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality
of its performance. With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. Selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and

contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions set out below:

. developing and reviewing the Company's policies and practices on corporate

governance and making recommendations to the Board;

. reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional development of

Directors and senior management;

. reviewing and monitoring the Company's policies and practices on compliance with

legal and regulatory requirements;

. developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance manual

(if any) applicable to Directors and employees; and

. reviewing the Company's compliance with the code and disclosure in the corporate

governance report.
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BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Regular Board meetings are held at regular intervals for reviewing and approving the
financial and operating performance, and considering and approving the overall strategies

and policies of the Company.

The Board met 12 times during the year ended 31 December 201 6.

PRACTICES AND CONDUCT OF MEETINGS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company, overseeing the
Group's businesses, strategic decisions, risk management and internal control systems, and
monitoring the performance of the senior management. The day-to-day management,
administration and operations of the Company are delegated to the CEO and the senior

management.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at least 7 days before
the meetings while reasonable notice is generally given for other Board meetings. For
committee meetings, notices are served in accordance with the required notice period

stated in the relevant terms of reference.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable information
are normally sent to all Directors before each Board meeting to keep the Directors
apprised of the latest developments and financial position of the Company and to enable
them to make informed decisions. All Directors are given the opportunity to include
matters in the agenda for regular Board meetings. The Board and each Director also have

separate and independent access to the senior management whenever necessary.

Minutes of all Board meetings recording sufficient details of matters considered and
decisions reached are kept by the secretary of the meetings and are open for inspection by

the Directors.
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The composition of the Board and the attendance of individual members of the Board and BEWIFNAINALEFE EFgNEKK
Board committees meetings during the year ended 3| December 2016 are set out in the BRI ERNESEREZTZESEELHE
table below: BRER TR
Attendance
HEER
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Committee Committee Comnmittee
Directors Board Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting AGM
Bz EZEEH FIZEEE8 FHZEEEEE REZEEER RRAFAE
Executive Directors
BITES
Liu Xue Heng 10/12 - - - 1/l
EL=E]
Hu Yebi 1712 = 4/4 33 /1
RS
Niu Zhongjie 1712 = 4/4 33 /1
TER
Zhu Shixing 9112 - - - 1/l
ML E
Lam KaTak /12 - - - 1/l
HEE
Zhang Tingzhe 10/12 = = = I/
REER
Tsui Ngai, Eddie (Note 1) 3112 - - - -
IR
Leung Pui Man (Note 2) 3112 - - - -
RAE (HiE2)
Independent non-executive Directors
BUKHITES
Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming 12/12 33 4/4 33 1/l
e JEIEE
Xin Luo Lin 1712 2/3 314 33 /1
FREM
Pan Lihui 12/12 33 4/4 33 /1
&
Tse Man Kit, Keith [1/12 - - - /1
i X
Notes: B 5 -

BYEETHRNI6F7TANBRZTAERR
RAIYITES-

(1) Mr Tsui Ngai, Eddie was appointed as an executive Director of the Company on 20 July 2016. (h

ZMELLER20I6F5H 18HBHEARR A
HiTES-

(2)  Ms.Leung Pui Man resigned as an executive Director of the Company on 18 May 2016. 2
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT
PROGRAMME

Pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code, all Directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

This is to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

The Company has put in place an on-going training and professional development

programs for Directors.

During the year ended 3| December 2016, all Directors of the Company received regular
briefings, seminars, conference and/or updates relevant to the Group's business, operations,
risk management, corporate governance, directors’ duty and responsibilities, and other
relevant topics. Materials on new or salient changes to laws and regulations applicable to
the Group were provided to the Directors. All Directors have provided the Company with

their respective training records pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To oversee particular aspects of the Company's affairs and to assist in the execution
of its responsibilities, the Board has established three Board committees, namely Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, and Nomination Committee. Independent
non-executive Directors play an important role in these committees to ensure that

independent and objective views are expressed and to promote critical review and control.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee was established by the Board on 3 December 201 1. The Audit

Committee comprises of three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr Lok
Lawrence Yuen Ming, Mr: Xin Luo Lin and Mr. Pan Lihui and is chaired by Mr. Lok Lawrence
Yuen Ming, a qualified accountant with extensive experience in financial reporting and
controls. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee were amended in 29 March
2016 to reflect the additional responsibilities of the Audit Committee arising from the
Stock Exchange's proposal on risk management and internal control under the Corporate
Governance Code applicable to accounting periods beginning on or after Ist January,
2016. It is responsible for appointment of external auditor; review of the Group's financial
information and overseeing the Group's financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control procedures. It is also responsible for reviewing the interim and annual
results of the Group prior to recommending them to the Board for approval. It meets
regularly to review financial reporting and internal control matters and to this end, has
unrestricted access to the Company's external auditor: Its terms of reference are available

on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

To comply with the requirement under the Corporate Governance Code in respect
of the responsibilities for performing the corporate governance duties, the Board has
delegated its responsibilities to the Audit Committee to develop and review the policies
and practices of the Company on corporate governance and make recommendations to
the Board; to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; to develop, review and monitor the code of
conduct applicable to the Directors and employees; to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior management and to review
the Company's compliance with the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance

Code contained in the Listing Rules and disclosures in the corporate governance report.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, three meetings were held by the Audit
Committee including the approval of change of auditor of the Company, the reviews and
approvals of the annual results for 2015 and the interim results for 2016. It also reviewed
the Company's progress in implementing the corporate governance requirements as set

out in the Corporate Governance Code.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established by the Board on 3 December 201 | with
its written terms of reference revised on 27 March 2012. The Remuneration Committee
comprises of five members, namely Mr. Hu Yebi and Mr Niu Zhongjie who are the
executive Directors and Mr: Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming, Mr. Xin Luo Lin and Mr. Pan Lihui
who are the independent non-executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee is

chaired by Mr. Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making recommendations
on the remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages of the executive
Directors and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible
for establishing transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding
his/her own remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as market practice and conditions.
It also makes recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive

Directors.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year for reviewing the remuneration
policy and structure and recommending the annual remuneration packages of the
executive Directors and the senior executives and other related matters. Its terms of

reference are available on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended 31 December, 2016, four Remuneration Committee meetings
were held including the approvals of the remunerations of the executive Directors newly
appointed on January 2016 and July 2016, the approvals of share options granted to
Directors and senior management on April 2016, and the approval of the refreshment of

Share Option Scheme on May 2016.

Further particulars regarding Directors and chief executive's remuneration and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to appendix |6 to the Listing

Rules are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

To comply with the Corporate Governance Code, a Nomination Committee was
established on 3 December 201 | with its terms of reference revised on 30 August 2013,
The Nomination Committee comprises of five members, namely Mr. Hu Yebi and Mr. Niu
Zhongjie who are the executive Directors and Mr. Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming, Mr Xin Luo
Lin and Mr. Pan Lihui who are the independent non-executive Directors. The Remuneration

Committee is chaired by Mr. Pan Lihui.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for making recommendations to the Board
on nominations, appointment or re-appointment of Directors and Board succession.
The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the structure, size,
diversity and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
at least annually, making recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company's corporate strategy, identifying individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and accessing the independence of independent non-executive
Director. Its terms of reference are available on the respective websites of the Stock

Exchange and the Company.
During the year ended 31 December 2016, three Nomination Committee meetings were

held including the approvals of the executive Directors and appointed on January 2016 and

July 2016 respectively and the appointment of the company secretary on June 201 6.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

PricewaterhouseCoopers retired as the auditor of the Company at the AGM on |5 June

2016, and Ernst & Young was appointed as the auditors of the Company on |5 June 2016.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the remuneration paid/payable to Ernst & Young,

the auditors of the Company; is set as follows:
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2016

20165

HK$'000

THER

Audit Bz 2333
Non-audit services IEFEZIRTE 299
Total st 2,632

The non-audit services mainly represent the preparation of the Environmental, Social and

Governance Report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2016.

HEZREEZEFEARREE216F12
AHLEEEZRE HERERRE-

ERBEXCEXRBERA A
—B-AEEH

53



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREARE

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements for each financial
period with a view to ensuring such financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. The
Company's financial statements are prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory
requirements and suitable accounting standards. The Directors are responsible for ensuring
that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently; judgements and

estimates made are prudent and reasonable.

A statement by the auditor about their reporting responsibilities is contained in the

Independent Auditor's Report.

The Board confirmed that it has taken the same view from the Audit Committee regarding

the appointment of the external auditor.

RISK. MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems of the Group. The systems include a defined
management structure with limits of authority, and are designed for the Group to identify
and manage the significant risks to achieve its business objectives, safeguard its assets against
unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records
for the provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for publication, and
ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The systems are designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss, and to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in the Group's operational systems and in the

achievement of the Group's business objectives.
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Under Code Provision C.2.5, the Group should have an internal audit function. The Group
conducted an annual review on the need for setting up an internal audit department.
Given the Group's simple operating structure at the present moment, it was decided
that the Board would be directly responsible for risk management and internal control
systems of the Group. The Board through the Audit Committee had conducted an annual
review on the risk management and internal control systems of the Group. The review
covered material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions of the Group. Appropriate measures have been put in place to
manage the risks. No major issue was raised for improvement. The improvement of the
systems of risk management and internal control is an ongoing process and the Board
maintains a continuing commitment to strengthen the Group's control environment and

processes.

The Company acknowledges its responsibilities under the SFO, Chapter 571 of the laws of
Hong Kong and formulated the inside information policy. The Company regularly reminds
the Directors and employees about due compliance with all policies regarding the inside
information. Also, the Company keeps Directors, senior management and employees
appraised of the latest regulatory updates. The Company shall prepare or update

appropriate guidelines or policies to ensure the compliance with regulatory requirements.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules regarding securities transactions by Directors and senior management. After specific
enquiry, all Directors of the Company confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard of dealings set out in the Model Code since the listing of the Shares on 16 January
2012.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREARE

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary, Mr. Jan Wing Fu, Barry (“Mr. Jan"), is responsible to the Board for
ensuring that the Board procedures are followed and the Board activities are efficiently and
effectively conducted. He is also responsible for ensuring that the Board is fully apprised of
the relevant legislative, regulatory and corporate governance developments relating to the

Group and facilitating the induction and professional development of Directors.

Mr Jan was appointed as the chief financial officer; the company secretary and an
authorized representative of the Company with effect from 15 June 2016. Mr. Jan was a
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants till December 2015 and
has been an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since 1993. He obtained a bachelor degree in business administration from the University
of New Brunswick, Canada in December 1989. Mr. Jan has over 26 years of solid

experience in auditing, accounting, general management and financial control.

M Jan reports to the Chairman, plays an essential role in the relationship between the
Company and its Shareholders, and assists the Board in discharging its obligations to

Shareholders pursuant to the Listing Rules.
During the vear ended 31 December 2016, Mr. Jan has attended relevant professional

seminars to update his skills and knowledge and has complied with the Listing Rules to take

no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for communication between
the Board and the Shareholders. They provide an opportunity for Shareholders to
better understand the Group's operation, financial performance, business strategies and
outlook. The chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the nomination committee,
remuneration committee and audit committee or, in their absence, other members of
the respective committees are available to answer questions at Shareholder meetings.
To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website at www.bsehk.
com, where up-to-date information and updates on the Company's financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are posted. The Board, according
to the Listing Rules, will conduct voting at the forthcoming AGM by poll. The results of the
Company voting will be announced on the Company's website and the website of the

Stock Exchange.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, any one or more Shareholders holding at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the Company, to
require an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in

such requisition.

The procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals at an AGM or EGM include
a written notice of those proposals being submitted by Shareholders, addressed to the
Board at the registered office. The detailed procedures vary according to whether the
proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution or a special resolution, or whether the proposal
relates to the election of a person other than a Director of the Company as a director. The
relevant procedures are set out in the Notice of AGM which accompanies the despatch of
this annual report to Shareholders and will be included with the notice to Shareholders of
any future AGM.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Article 88 of the Articles of Association provides that if a Shareholder duly qualified to
attend and vote at the meeting wishes to propose a person other than a Director of
the Company for election as a Director at the general meeting, he/she/it shall deposit a
written notice to that effect at the principle place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong for the attention of the Board. Such notice should also be signed by the nominated
candidate indicating his/her willingness to be elected. In order to ensure that Shareholders
have sufficient time to receive and consider the information of the nominated candidate,
such notice should be given to the Company within seven days after the dispatch of the
notice of AGM of the Company. Details of the Shareholders’ right to propose a person
for election as a Director and the related procedures are set out in the constitutional
documents of the Company published on the Stock Exchange’s website (www.hkexnews.
hk).

Shareholders may direct their questions about their shareholdings to the Company's
Registrar. Enquiries may be directly put to the Board by questions at an AGM or EGM.
Questions on the procedures for convening or putting forward proposals and other
enquiries may also be made to the Board by writing to the company secretary at the
Company's office in Hong Kong at Room 101, 5/F, Greatmany Centre, | || Queen's Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of Shareholders at a general
meeting must be taken by poll.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Memorandum and Articles of Association (“M&A”") of the
Company during the year under review. A copy of the latest consolidated version of the
M&A of the Company is posted on the Company's website (www.bsehk.com) and the

Stock Exchange's website (www.hkexnews.hk).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company discloses information in compliance with the Listing Rules, and publishes
periodic reports and announcements to the public in accordance with the relevant laws
and regulations. The primary focus of the Company is to ensure information disclosure is
timely, fair, accurate, truthful and complete, thereby enabling Shareholders, investors as well

as the public to make rational and informed decisions.

THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING

In January 2016, the Stock Exchange amended the Environmental, Social and Governance
(“ESG") Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide" or the “Guide”) set out in appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules.

The amendments to the ESG Guide and related Listing Rules will come into effect in two

phases.

The Listing Rule amendments and the upgrade of the general disclosures in the Guide from
recommended to “comply or explain”, as well as the revised recommended disclosures,

will be effective for the Company's financial year commencing on or after | January 2016.

The upgrade of the KPIs in the “Environmental” Subject Area of the Guide from
recommended to “comply or explain” will be effective for the Company's financial year

commencing on or after | January 2017.

The independent ESG report will be posted on the Company website (www.bsehk.
com) and the Stock Exchange’s website (www.hkexnews.hk) within three months of the

publication of the annual report.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that good corporate governance could ensure an effective
distribution of the resources and Shareholders’ interests. The senior management will
continue endeavors in maintaining, enhancing and increasing the Group's corporate

governance level and quality.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS
EEEE

As at the date of this annual report, the Board consists of eleven Directors, including seven

executive Directors and four independent non-executive Directors.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Xue Heng, aged 44, was appointed as an executive Director, the chairman of the
Board, and the chief executive officer with effect from 25 January 2016. Mr. Liu is currently
an executive director; joint-chief executive officer, an authorized representative and a
member of Investment and Risk Management Committee of Beijing Enterprises Medical
And Health Industry Group Limited (stock code: 2389). Before joining the Company, he
served as an executive director and the chairman of Investment and Risk Management
Committee of Beijing Properties (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 925) during the period
from | January 2011 to 23 December 2015. He was also an executive director and
the chief executive officer of Bestway International Holdings Limited (stock code: 718)
during the period from |1 July 2014 to 19 January 2016, as well as an independent non-
executive director of Guangshen Railway Co,, Limited (stock code: 525) during the period
from 2 June 2011 to 29 May 2014 respectively. Mr. Liu obtained a Master of Business
Administration from Cambridge University in the United Kingdom. He has extensive
experience in equity investment, corporate finance, initial public offer, and mergers and

acquisitions.

Mr. Hu Yebi, aged 53, was appointed as an executive Director with effect from 23 April
2015. Mr. Hu is the founder and chairman of Vision Finance Group Limited. Mr Hu
received his Master of Business Administration from Netherlands International Institute for
Management in the Netherlands and a Postgraduate Diploma in Management Engineering
from Beijing Institute of Technology in Beijing, the PRC. Mr. Hu has more than 25 vears
of experience in securities and financial services, merger and acquisition and corporate
finance. Mr. Hu also holds concurrent executive directorships with Hua Lien International
(Holding) Company Limited (stock code: 969), China Healthwise Holdings Limited (stock
code: 348) and Beijing Properties (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 925).
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Mr. Niu Zhongjie, aged 49, was appointed as an executive Director with effect from
23 April 2015. He is an executive director of Vision Finance Capital Limited, a licensed
corporation under the Securities and Futures Ordinance which is engaged in advising
on merger and acquisition and corporate finance. He also serves an independent non-
executive director of Gold— Finance Holdings Limited (stock code: 1462) since 3 February
2016. Mr. Niu obtained a master degree in business administration. Mr: Niu has extensive

experience in equity capital markets.

Mr. Zhu Shixing, aged 46, was appointed as an executive Director with effect from 24
December 2015. Mr. Zhu is currently an executive director; chairman and member of
investment and risk management committee of Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health
Industry Group Limited (stock code: 2389). Mr. Zhu graduated from the Central University
of Finance and Economics with a bachelor's degree in finance and obtained his master
degree in software engineering from Beihang University. In addition, Mr. Zhu obtained
a bachelor degree in sport management from Beijing Sport University in July 1994
Mr Zhu started his career as an assistant in the investment department of the China
Xinxing Corporation (Group) Limited* in 1994. During the period from 2004 to 2015,
he joined Beijing Holdings Limited ("BHL"), an affiliate of Beijing Properties (Holdings)
Limited (“BPHL", HKEx stock code: 925), and had been nominated the vice general
manager of various subsidiaries of BHL involving in industries of tourism, logistics, property
development and the executive vice president of BPHL. Mr. Zhu has extensive experience

in investment, financial management and property development.

* - For identification purpose only
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Mr. Lam Ka Tak, aged 35, was appointed as an executive Director with effect from 24
December 2015. Mr. Lam has over 10 years of experience in accounting and financial
matters. Mr. Lam currently served as the chief financial officer; the company secretary, the
authorized representative and the member of investment and risk management committee
of Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited (stock code: 2389) and
is mainly responsible for overseeing the financial management, regulatory compliance and
investors related matters. Mr. Lam also serves as an independent non-executive director,
the chairman of the audit committee, and the member of the remuneration committee
of U Banquet Group Holding Limited (stock code: 1483). Mr. Lam worked as an audit
manager at KPMG from April 2006 to September 2010. He obtained a Bachelor degree in
Accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 2003 and a Master
in Business Administration degree from The University of Hong Kong in November 2013.
He was a member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants till June 2010
and has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since

January 2010.

Mr. Zhang Tingzhe, aged 44, was appointed as an executive Director with effect from 25
January 2016. Mr. Zhang was the assistant general manager of Beijing Properties (Holdings)
Limited (stock code: 925) since 2010, devoting himself to the projects of developing and
managing commercial real estate and logistics real estate segment in Beijing. Mr. Zhang
founded Beijing Hongse Guangbo Advertising Co., Limited® in 2003 and served as the
general manager; the major customers of which are social welfare institutions including
Ministry of Health, Chinese Center For Disease Control And Prevention and United
Nations International Children's Emergency Fund. He served as the creative director in
numerous famous advertising and media creation companies during the period from 1998
to 2003, mainly responsible for full scheme image planning, business marketing planning and
implementation of media delivery. Mr. Zhang obtained a degree of bachelor in Industrial

Design* from Luxun Academy of Fine Arts, Liaoning in 1997.

e For identification purpose only
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Mr. Tsui Ngai, Eddie, aged 31, was appointed as an executive Director with effect from
20 July 2016. Mr.Tsui is currently the Senior Manager of Everbright Securities Hong Kong
Limited. He is also a Project Manager of K)ZEE471% & BBR A 7). Mr Tsui obtained a
Bachelor of Arts degree in Accounting & Finance from the University of Durham, United
Kingdom in June 201 1. Mr. Tsui has strong background in finance with over five years of

experience in hedge fund and securities management.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming, aged 56, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director with effect from 23 April 2015. Mr. Lok has more than 30 years of experience
in public accounting, finance and commercial working experience in both Sydney and
Hong Kong. Mr Lok received his Master of Economics — Professional Accounting
from Macquarie University, New South Wales Australia in 1988. He was qualified as an
accountant in 1987, and is an associate member of Hong Kong Society of Accountants and
a fellow member of Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia. He has been the chief

executive officer of CSI Investment Management Limited in Hong Kong since 2001,

Mr. Xin Luo Lin, aged 67, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director with
effect from 23 April 2015. Mr. Xin was a postgraduate from the Peking University in the
PRC in 1980. He was a visiting scholar at the Waseda University, Japan between 1980
and 1983, an honorary research associate at the University of British Columbia, Canada
during 1983 and 1984, and a visiting fellow at the Australia National University, Australia
from 1984 to 1985. He was appointed as a Justice of the Peace in New South Wales of
Australia in 1991. He was appointed as an adviser to the chairman of Guangdong Capital
Holdings Limited from 1998 to 2000. He is an independent investor with over 20 years of
experience in investment banking in the PRC, Hong Kong and Australia. Mr. Xin is currently:
(i) an independent non-executive director of Sinolink Worldwide Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1168); (ii) an independent non-executive director of Central China Real Estate
Limited (stock code: 832); (iii) a director of Asia Growth Capital Limited a public company
listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange; and (iv) a director and vice chairman of Oriental

Technologies Investment Limited, a public company listed on the Australian Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Pan Lihui, aged 49, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director with
effect from 23 April 2015. Mr. Pan obtained a bachelor degree in International Economics
from Beijing University of International Relations in the PRC in 1989. He has over 25 vears
of experience in nonferrous metals industry. Mr. Pan worked in Mind Honour Limited from
1994 to 1998 as a manager. Mr. Pan founded Pentart Industrial Limited in 1998 and Able
Plus International Limited in 2001 and has since been a director and general manager of

these two companies.

Mr. Tse, Man Kit, Keith, aged 43, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director with effect from 25 January 2016. Mr. Tse is the chief financial officer and
company secretary of Shunfeng International Clean Energy Limited (stock code: | 165)
since September 2010. Mr. Tse also serves as an independent non-executive director; the
chairman of the audit committee and a member of the remuneration committee and the
nomination committee of Beijing Enterprises Medical And Health Industry Group Limited
(stock code: 2389). Mr.Tse has around 19 years of working experience in accounting and
financial management. He worked in a number of international accountant firms and the
qualified accountant of Fosun International Limited (stock code 656). Mr.Tse is a member
of Certified Practising Accountant of CPA Australia and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr: Tse obtained a bachelor's degree in commerce
from University of Wollongong, New South Wales, Australia in July 1997, majoring in

accountancy and finance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

e

Ernst & Young TXKEETRI SR
EY 22/F, CITIC Tower BEDIRREEIR
ﬁﬂ( 1 Tim Mei Avenue hEKE221&

Central, Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT
INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS ASR LOGISTICS
HOLDINGS LIMITED)

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Beijing Sports and Entertainment
Industry Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 72 to |71, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the

consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 3| December 2016, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs")
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the "Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

B BEN RS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B M B S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our

HRELEE
BREZFERBSNERHEGS §V$
BRECGEANBERETREENEH B
%%%%%HA%Fﬁ§FE%#$E&%
HERER MASREEEEEBERE
R-HRTAMNSEER EFHEEHERH

audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfiled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the

audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report, including in relation

BENERNAEEE —REMNEL -

BERETAY %ﬁVﬁﬁ%%%fAW%ﬁ
KL —fl (BREMELSER)MN

to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed BE-Elt ESNEREENTEENES
to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated FHREVBRREAERRRNTHNE

financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures

performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the

accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

BRELSHE

“}

BENEREFNER BRABHUT
%Iﬁﬁﬁiﬂﬁﬁ’ﬁif“ﬁ FHPANTER A B 15
HERMBZERIRM T AR

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMANERNAEHBRERS R

Recognition of share-based payment

KR BEREAI TR

The Company granted 68,180,000 share options during the year

ended 31 December 2016 and recognised the related share-based

compensation expense of HK$ 11,699,000 which was material to the

consolidated financial statements.

BEW0IFNANBLFEE BERFRCR 68 1800000

Bt THERHEAMBRRMEBEZORBAURN AR
T2 HEE 1,699,000 T
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Our audit procedures included reviewing the share option scheme,
assessing the independence and competence of the independent
valuer and with the assistance of our valuation experts in evaluating the
assumptions and methodologies used by the Group and the independent
valuer engaged by the Group. We also assessed the adequacy of the
related disclosures in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
Z%V&F EinE BR8] FHE B A E 2 B 1t
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont’d)

Key audit matter

HREERER

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
B BEN RS

BRELEE (A)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANERNMEHBEERER

The Group was required to assess the fair value of the share options
in order to determine the share-based compensation expense
recognised. The valuation of the share options was based on valuation
model with inputs including dividend vyield, expected volatility, risk-
free interest rate and exercise multiple. We focused on this area due
to the significant management judgement involved in determining the
fair value of the share options. Management engaged an independent
valuer to perform valuation of the share options granted during the
year.

RETEHERUNRNAERZFHEER BEEANGE
BEZAREBE -BREZGHENERGAZBEEERER
@R BEKE BRRAXRITES T2 HERN -EFF
BILERIARNETBREZANBESRENEERE
i -EREREA-RBUMEMSFASRE ZBREEL
1TfhfE -

Disclosures of this item are included in notes 3 and 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

WIRE 2 WBEEN G A M RRM E3R26 -

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

B SR B EaF I

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had trade receivables of
HK$6,652,000. Management assessed whether a provision for
impairment was needed in respect of those trade receivables that
might not be fully collectable. The determination as to whether a
trade receivable was collectable involved significant management
judgement. Specific factors management considered included the
ageing of the balances, recent historical payment patterns, existence
of disputes, and any other available information concerning the
creditworthiness of the debtors.

R2016F12A318 BEEEZE5 R KA R6,652,0007%
T EEENEREFNZFULBEITHNE 2 E HER
TERBELRERG BT —BESREFE 2 KRE T
BREAERENHE EREZRCABRRRBRAESRL
ik RICELINATA Mz FERBREBAGEZE
A ESZER -

Disclosures of this item are included in notes 3 and |8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

R B 2 REEN G A W BmAM T3R8 -

We assessed management's processes and controls relating to the
monitoring of trade receivables to identify the objective evidence of
impairment. Our audit procedures included, on a sampling basis, obtaining
direct confirmations from certain debtors, and checking the ageing
of receivable balances, the debtors’ historical payment patterns, the
bank receipts for the payments received subsequent to the end of the
reporting period and the latest correspondence with debtors.
BEAHEEEAMEEE S RUGIER R FR S - AR
B RERE BELERREFBRUMEN ARRETEHA
ZEEHER RRERKREARB KR BEBAZELXNT
A BEHRRERRNFERITRIB A RO R EERA 2 B
o

EtREEXEXREBRRAA
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B M B S

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, other than the

consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information

and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to

cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their

responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error; and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility

towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B M B S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

0 Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or; if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

J Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit

opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
B BEN RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED B EMRBRGESHBBRNEE (&)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters EEREEHZELBBNEET AT
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of ~— LEFIBHAH 2 XA M B MERNEZ TIER
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters REZ AMEKEREZEE RIDEER
in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the ERIDHAARBRBLEEE INEFR

matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not MIEAT ESRRBRBENEEHEASER
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would HHNTRERBBEARNBLEEENF
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. aMPAERREFRE BREZEENZH

BsRS Rt ERIR -

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is HARBURHBMBENEZBEERAR

Wong Chin Hung. BT

Ernst & Young BB
Certified Public Accountants BEDETAT

Hong Kong &R

28 March 2017 201734288
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ReBEERkHEMEERER

Year ended 31 December 2016

BE2016F12A31BLLFE
2016 2015
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
i &E FERT FET
REVENUE Wz 5 82,518 510,793
Cost of sales HEKRAR (73,930) (441,897)
Gross profit EH 8,588 68,896
Other income and gains H A Rz 5 17,774 1,279
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAS (1,768) (6,262)
Administrative expenses THRAX (58,059) (79.391)
Other expenses Hfth 7 < (16,180) (19,376)
Finance costs AR 7 (868 (1277)
Share of profit of an associate FE 15 — P B & 22 R) g A - 529
LOSS BEFORE TAX BRAEAIEE 6 (50,513) (35,602)
Income tax expense TS BRI 10 (1,605) (3.232)
LOSS FORTHE YEAR FAEBE (52,118) (38,834)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)  Eft 2 mU s,/ (E51E)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) to be RERBEERDEERR L
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent Hi2E Rz (FE)
periods:
Available-for-sale financial assets: At EEREE:
Changes in fair value NREEEE 653 (2,048)
Reclassification adjustments for loss included BN BRRBAABRZEBE
in profit or loss — loss on disposal —HEEE 2,157 -
2,810 (2,048)
Exchange differences: BEH =5
Exchange differences on translation of MEBINEBEELZ
foreign operations bE W = HE (2,244) (1,255)
Reclassification adjustments for foreign EFHEABRFALEL
operations disposed of during the year BINETS 29 225 -
(2,019) (1,255)
Net other comprehensive income/(loss) BREEBEERIBEEERZ
to be reclassified to profit or loss Hi2E Rz (EE)
in subsequent periods HE 791 (3303)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)  FREM2EKZE/ (HiE)
FORTHE YEAR, NET OF TAX (HBRTIE) 791 (3.303)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FRAZHEER
FORTHE YEAR e (51,327) (42,137)

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ReBRsEkHEtEZEKER

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZ2016512A31BILFE

2016 2015
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
P &E TR TET
Loss attributable to: ATBEREEES:
— Owners of the parent —BREHEEA (48,264) (40,612)
— Non-controlling interests — IR (3,854) 1,778
(52,118) (38,834)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to: NTEEEGEEEEERE:
— Owners of the parent —BRAHEEA (46,611) (43,703)
— Non-controlling interests — IR (4,716) 1,566
(51,327) (42,137)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO yNC]
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF LRRESRAA
THE PARENT SRR I
Basic and diluted EAXAREE HK(4.6) centsfll  HK(5.0) centsi# Il

EtREEXEXREBRRAA
—E-AEER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

a P BIRR R

31 December 2016

20164 12H31H
2016 2015

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000

B FTAR FAT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME-BERE 12 17,617 6,637
Investment properties REME 13 87,000 87,000
Goodwill EES 14 764 —
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESHEE 15 - 3,605
Prepayments and deposits BNREBEREZE 16 9,794 331
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 115,175 107,573
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE |7 521 -
Trade receivables EL LG8 8 6,652 71491
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TR 3R - 12 & K H b U 5K 16 22,866 10,251
Tax recoverable A 4 Bl 72 8 834 391
Pledged deposits RSN 19 - 6,388
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 19 306,398 51,029
Total current assets MEEEAE 337,271 139,550
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Trade and bills payables EHRNFIERENRE 20 8,202 66,063
Other payables and accruals Hth e 5118 R 5+ & 21 25,798 22,380
Finance lease liabilities MEMERE - 64
Interest-bearing bank borrowings i RERITE 22 - 25,148
Loans from a shareholder MRER & 23 175,156 20,043
Tax payable e I8 3,654 1,949
Total current liabilities VEINERE L 212,810 135,647

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mEMBARRE
31 December 2016
201612 A318
2016 2015
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt & FER FHEIT
NET CURRENT ASSETS mBEEFE 124,461 3903
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #EERTEBAE 239,636 111,476
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES *RBES
Other payables H At e~ 3018 2 774 -
Finance lease liabilities MEHEER - 65
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEAE 24 233 53
Total non-current liabilities ERE B EEE 1,007 118
Net assets EEFE 238,629 [11,358
EQUITY E
Equity attributable to owners of the parent ~ BB HE AEHER
Share capital B 25 5,841 4,689
Reserves i 27 221,199 104,558
227,040 109,247
Non-controlling interests IR i & 11,589 2,111
Total equity HmiEn 238,629 111,358

Liu Xueheng
g|818
Director

EF

Hu Yebi
HEE

Director

EF

EtREEXEXREBRRAA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 December 2016

BE2016F12A31HILFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
BRAERARE
Avallable-for-
sale financial
Share Exchange Statutory  Share-based assets Non-
Share premium Capital fluctuation and legal payment revaluation  Accumulated controling
Note aapital account reserve reserve reserves reserve reserve losses Total interests  Total equty
AfE
i SHERS EER DRhAER EREE Zif HHER
(i3 e BEE  EAEE e AERE BOAMEE  ERREE BB &t s ik
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
T THL L L FEL FiEn FiEn Fitn Fitn Fitn T
Balance at | January 2015 H0ISE I A BRI &8 4034 51,56 5845 3648 2870 2458 (762) (12334) 57320 2225 59545
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - - (40612) (40612) 1,778 (38834)

Other comprehensive loss for the year FREM2EER
Changes in far value of avalable-forsale WIiIHE SREEZ

finandial assets MEBED 15 - - - - - - (2049) - (2048) - (2048)
Exchange differences related to RERNEBL

foreign operations EiER - - - (104) - - - - (1043) (ol}) (1,255
Total comprehensive loss orthe year ~ A2 EEEREE - - - (1083) - - (2049) (40612) #3703) 1,566 (#.137)
Release upon cancellation of EEEERE

vested share options O - - - - - (2459) - 2458 - - -
Acquistion of a subsidiary WE-AREAR 655 94975 - - - - - - 95630 - 95630
Dividend to non-controling shareholders {7 SERRR 2R 8 - - - - - - - - - (1,680) (1,680)
Balance at 3| December 2015 #0ISE12A31R

fER 4689 14653 5845% 2605 2870 -+ Q810 (S0488F 109247 201 111,358
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
MEREEER

Year ended 31 December 2016

BZ2016F12A31HILFE
Autributable to owners of the parent
BAREEARL
Available-for-
sale financial
Share Exchange Statutory Share- assets Non-
Share premium Capital ~ fluctuation andlegal based payment  revaluation  Accumulated controlling
Notes capital account reserve reserve reserves reserve reserve losses Total interests  Total equity
e
Lo AERD EER URGHAEE SHEE it FER
(if:3 e BEE  ERRRE R REBE NAREBE  EfEE it | Eh it AR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TR TER TEn Tén Tén Tin Fin Fin Fin Tin T
Balance at | January 2016 R0I651 A1 BHYEE 4689 146,536 5,845 2605 2870 - (2810) (50488) 109,47 2111 111,358
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - - (48264) (48,264) (3854) (52,118
Other comprehensive loss for the year: FREM2HEEE:
Bxchange differences related to REENEBZ
foreign operations EiZE - - - (1,157) - - - - (1,157) (862) (2019)
Changes in fair value of avallable-forsdle AT ESRIBEZ
financil asets MEERD 15 - - - - - - 2810 - 2810 - 2810
Total comprehensive loss orthe year ~ A2 EEEREE - - - (1157) - - 2810 (48264) (46,611) (4716) (51,327)
Issue of shares A 25 1152 155,028 - - - - - - 156,180 - 156,180
Capital contribution from FERER
non-controling shareholders pid - - - - - - - - - 10594 10594
Equity-settled share-based payment IR EHIA R
arrangements BERHITES % - - - - - 11,699 - - 11,699 - 11,699
Acquistion of subsidaries WENRBAR 28 - - - - - - - - - 2167 2167
Acquistion of non-controling interests R FE IR RIE 26 - - (3475) - - - - - (3475) 3475 -
Disposal of subsidaries HEHBAR Y - - - - - - - - - (204) (204
Balance at 31 December 2016 0165128318
Eif 5841 301,564¢ 2370* | 448" 2870* 11,699 + (98,752)% 07,040 11,589 238629

3 These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$221,199,000 (2015: o ZERERORGEMBRAEK 2 FE R

HK$104,558,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

%221,199,000/8 7 (2015%F : 104,558,000/
Jo) °

EtREEXEXREBRRAA
—B-AFER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERERER

Year ended 31 December 2016

BE2016F12A31BLLFE
2016 2015
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
P & TER FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETBHHE
ACTIVITIES: RERE:
Loss before tax: BREAIE R : (50,513) (35,602)
Adjustments for: FATIHE AR
Finance costs BEKA 7 868 1,277
Share of profit of an associate JE 16 —Fl B & 12 ) g ) - (529)
Interest income FMEWA 5 (298) (245)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEME BERZEEE 2
plant and equipment BB 6 99 703
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR ZEE 6 1,908 =
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HEHEESRMEEL
financial assets BB 6 4415 -
Depreciation e 6 4223 3,128
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment REME
of investment properties (RERE),RE 6 (2,307) 9,492
Amortisation of intangible assets BREESE 6 - 447
Impairment of items of property, ME- -BERREEBEEZ
plant and equipment A E 6 2,028 829
Impairment of goodwill R E 6 - 630
Impairment of intangible assets B EERE 6 - 1,429
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 RN IERE 6 816 3,238
Write-off of other current assets Hth R &) & E M 3E 6 2,440 =
Gain on write-back of trade payable B 5 REMNFIAZ B 5 (10,226) -
Equity-settled share option expense R EE 2 BIRER S 26 11,699 =
(34,848) (15,203)
Increase in inventories FEEN (168) -
Decrease in trade receivables B I RWHIER D 63,744 70,862
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and BNRIE Re K
other receivables Hfth YR IBR 1,425 5233
Decrease in pledged deposits EEREZOR S - 579
Decrease in trade and bills payables B HRNRIERENRER D (37,876) (101,410)
Decrease in other payables and accruals H o 3RIE KBt & AR A (12,990) (16,546)
Cash used in operations REmARE (20,713) (56,485)
Income taxes paid BTG (827) (8,444)
Net cash flows used in operating activities REZSMARENEFHE (21,540) (64.929)
continued/4&..
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

MERERER
Year ended 31 December 2016
BZ2016F12A31HILFE
2016 2015
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
P &E TR TET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZBFASRERE

ACTIVITIES
Interest received B UFILE 298 245
Purchase of items of property, plant and E%EWJ% S

equipment (14,649) (2,807)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEME BERZEER 2

plant and equipment 1S RIB 3 680
Purchase of investment properties BEREME 13 - (963)
Acquisition of subsidiaries s B I ET 28 1,226 2
Disposal of subsidiaries HENELR A 29 (9,834) =
Repayment of loans to an associate [ — [ B i /& AfEE - 3,600
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities 1% &/EBFTE,/ (FTA)REREFE (22,956) 757
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEZDFERERE

ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRM IS RIA 25 156,180 -
Proceeds from new bank loans iRTES Fﬁ%?ﬁ 31,155 24,377
Proceeds from shareholders’ loans IR & A1 RRIE 23 175,000 20,043
Repayments of bank loans ERRITEN (55,532) (32,735)
Proceeds from pledged deposits s [ 2 3017 5K 6,388 -
Repayments of shareholder’s loans EERREN (20,043) —
Capital element of finance lease rental payments &l & & & (5K 2 A& 5 H (20) (114)
Capital contribution from non-controlling BRI E

shareholders 10,594 -
Dividend paid BERRE - (122,709)
Interest paid BERAE (868) (1277
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities B8 & EENFTS, (FTA) RE T2 35 ,302,854 (112,415)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASHAND RE&RBREZEY FE M,/

CASH EQUIVALENTS (Rd) 28 258,358 (176,587)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  FE#13R & KR & Mfﬁ% 50,258 227933
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net INGE BE R B R H (2,218) (1,088)
CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT EXFERFESEED

END OF YEAR 306,398 50,258
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASHAND  RE&RBEZBWHEHR DT

CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the BB RMIIR 2 K

statement of financial position BeEEY 19 306,398 51,029
Bank overdraft RITEX 22 - (771)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the fﬁi}miﬁﬁﬁﬁ” ek

statement of cash flows REEEY 306,398 50,258
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RE ER R M AL

I.  CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Beijing Sports and Entertainment Industry Group Limited (the “Company"),

formerly known as ASR Logistics Holdings Limited, is a limited liability company

incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is 3rd Floor,

Queensgate House, |13 South Church Street, PO. Box 10240, Grand Cayman,

KY1-1002 Cayman lslands.

The Company is an investment holding company and, the Company and its

subsidiaries (together, the “Group™) are principally engaged in the provision of air

freight services in the wholesale market and investment and operation of the sports

and entertainment related business in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

NEAREEEH
IERBEXCEXRERERAF ([K
RA AEEERERERRAR)
R-EARNFAESESEMKLZAR
A o B = B M 4 A3rd Floor,
Queensgate House, |13 South Church
Street, PO. Box 10240, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1002 Cayman Islands ©

ARA B—EREERRAR AR
HMt @ e (5 [~ 5E] )E%?ﬁé%
E@%tt?‘m%}mfﬁﬁ PRI R EAR
tRE ([HE]DREREERBE IR
z@F ZEZ R

tt

B\

ABEMEBELARZESR

ARAEEMBARZFENT

Percentage of equity

attributable

Place of incorporation/ Issued of equity to the Company

registration  ordinary/registered N

and business share capital LR E DL
Name HRERL/ BRTER Direct Indirect Principal activities
2R AMREXHE BB/ ZRRE EE 3 TEEH
ASR Champion Limited BVI US| 100 = Investment holding
ASR Champion Limited RERUES E RERR
Sino Insight Investments Limited BVI US$50,000 100 - Investment holding
Sino Insight Investments Limited RERUES 50,000% 7T REEMR
Switt Knight Limited BVI US$50,000 80 - Investment holding
Switt Knight Limited RERUES 50,000 7T REER
Kenston Global Limited BVI US$50,000 100 - Investment holding
Kenston Global Limited ABRARS 5000057 REER
Fortune Moon Investments Limited BVI US$50,000 [00 - Investment holding
Fortune Moon Investments Limited EBRUES 50,0005 7T RERR
ASR Limited Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 = 100 Investment holding
ASR Limited &R 2,000,000 7T REER
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Information about subsidiaries (Cont'd)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R RS

NAREEER (&)
FRANBARZER (&)

Percentage of equity

attributable

Place of incorporation/ Issued of equity to the Company

registration  ordinary/registered KAF

and business share capital EEEREDL
Name Bl e BRTES Direct Indirect Principal activities
£ EMREREE  BE/HERRE J=E:: 3 EL3 3
AQE Freight (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 - 100 Air freight solution services
HFREARAA B $3000000 7T EEH R
Star Pacific Logistics Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100 Air freight solution services
KFEERMAERAF B 1,000,000/ 7C EEARR
AOE Freight (Shenzhen) Limited® (notes(i)) PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 = 100 Air freight solution services
BFEREERE (R BRAF (M) mE/mEARE  AREI00000007T ZEHRRHE
Pacific Empire International PRC/Mainland China RMB7,500,000 = 100 Air freight solution services

(Shenzhen) Limited* (notes(i))
BAEREERE (RI)BRAR (KE() hE/HEAE  ARETS000007T EEHRR
OA Cargo Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100 Air freight solution services
OA Cargo Limited &h 1,000,000 7T ZEIRRS
OA Cargo (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 100 Air freight solution services
OA Cargo (HK) Limited 0 1000078 7T ZEHRRS
Pacific Empire (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 100 Air freight solution services
Pacific Empire (HK) Limited 0 10,0007 7T ZELERHB
Pacific Empire International Limited Macau MOP100,000 = 100 Air freight solution services
AFEFEERARAH & 10000025 7T EEHRRT
Sino Sky Trend Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
MEREBRAF &% 100007 7T REEK
Nobletree Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Property investment
Nobletree Limited B 1000078 70 YESIE
Beijing Sports Industry Group Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 80 Investment holding
IRBEEXREARAA BB 1000078 7 REEKR
China Swimming Clubs Association Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 100 Investment holding
PR K ERBARERRAR] B 100007 7T REER
Xiang Tai Information and Science and PRC/Mainland China RMB|,000,000 = 100 Investment holding
Technology (Shenzhen) Limited* (notes (i),(ii))

EARRRE (RN AR AR (HE).6) hE/HEAE  ARI0000007 RARR
EtREEXEXREBRRAA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RE ER R M AL

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Information about subsidiaries (Cont'd)

ARAREEER (&)

FRANBATZER (&)

Percentage of equity

attributable

Place of incorporation/ Issued of equity to the Company
registration  ordinary/registered KAF

and business share capital EEEREDL

Name Bl e BRTES Direct Indirect Principal activities

£ EMREREE  BE/HERRE J=E:: 3 EL3 3

Zhong Hu Sports Cutture Development PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
(Beijing) Limited®, “Zhong Hu Sports”, notes (i),(i)

PERELER (LX) ERAR [FERE] hE/HEAE  AR%300000007T REER
GBI

Zhong Hu Yueyong (Shanghai) Sports PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 = 100 Investment holding
Development Limited*
notes (i),(ii))

PEHX (LB BEERARAA hE/HEAE  ARES0000007T RERR
(W0 ()

Zhong Hu Dingfeng Sports PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 4g%* Construction and
Development (Beijing) Limited* operation of air dome
“Zhong Hu Dingfeng”, notes (i),(i))

TEREEFERE (LR)BRAF hE/HEAE  ARES0000007T REREREE
[RESE] (M) @)

Shenzhen Xin Yi Heng Tong Industry Limited* PRC/Mainland China RMB3,260,000 - 5092 Trading of goods
“Shenzhen Xinyi", notes (i) (ii))

AMImEEEREFERAR [RIIEE] hE/PEAE  ARM32600007 BEAm
GEIOROY

Notes: P 5

(i) These subsidiaries are limited liabilities companies registered in PRC.

(i) These subsidiaries were registered during the year ended 3| December 201 6.

@iy These subsidiaries were acquired during the year ended 31 December 201 6.

*  for identification purpose only
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2.1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Information about subsidiaries (Cont'd)
*k - Zhong Hu Dingfeng is a subsidiary of a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and, accordingly is accounted for as a subsidiary by virtue of the Company's control

over it.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of
the Group.To give details of the other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result

in particulars of the excessive length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for available-for-sale financial assets,
which have been measured at fair value. These financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2016. A subsidiary
is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group

the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

2.1

R RS
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Cont'd)

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or
similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances

in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including;

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and

continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed
to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions

between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements
of control described above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,

without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.
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2.1

2.2

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Cont'd)

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets (including
goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-
controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of
any investment retained and (iii) any resufting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group's share of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets

or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the first time for
the current year's financial statements and none of them has significant impact on

the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 28 (201 1)
BEMBRELERIE 055
BRMHRELERE 2K BB G LA
5285 (20119 ) W& 7]

2.1

2.2

R ESE

RRERE (&)
REEE (&)

WARBREAMBAR 2 EHI#E g
BRIEBROZMBARZEE (BEE
B)REE: ()EAFERER 2 RE
18 R (i st AR E) RET I E 250 - W
ROBERENALBE: ()EMMER
BREMAABER )T ABRSEES
KA RSKEAL - LAEREMEE
W BR A EB R0 HIRAE
B EELEEAEES A ERRER
BEEREEHNHBERRIRERT

BRRRNEERRE

AREBRAFE N BRE B KRN
THE R ERTRERBHRELEN A
HEAREEPERRBREATE -

Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception

REERE  [EH4EEAKAIPISMNER

Amendments to HKFRS |1

BEMBRELINE1IRAEE]

HKFRS 14

BRI BRELRE 457

Amendments to HKAS |

BREGERIEIRNER

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38

BEGHENF R REB T EL
FIBIRAVER]

Amendments to HKAS 27 (2011)

BB G ERIE275 (201 15F) OEET

Annual improvements 20/2-20/4 Cycle

20129 F20145F EHIH) F R 21

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations

WA FE L E )&%

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

EEEZEP

Disclosure Initiative

RETHIE

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

BBITERBHA A E L%

Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements
B BRI E %
Amendments to a number of HKFRSs

ATERUBRELR ZEF]
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RE ER R M AL

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.3

REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that have been

issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2

BRI BRELEELRNER]

Amendments to HKFRS 4

BB B HRELAE4RNERT

HKFRS 9

BRI R ELEREHR

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (201 1)

BEPBHRELANE IR LB LSS

R85 (20116) BB ET
HKFRS 15
BN BRELERE 55
Amendments to HKFRS |5
BEAMBHE LT S5RAER]
HKFRS 16
BN BRELE 65
Amendments to HKAS 7
BB ENETRAIER]
Amendments to HKAS 12
BB ERE KRBT
Annual Improvements 20/4-2016 cycle

20149 220/ 6F 1 HI 1) F J& 2

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2017

EEMEERERNE BB REER

AEELREZSHERRTRAAT
BEMIE R RERO ] REERTER
iR E &R -

Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transaction®

R BEBONARK 5278 R E

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts*
EREEHEBREEAEIN BT AERT BN BEHEEREIHREE AT
Financial Instruments*

A TA

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture*
REZHERBLERNAH A ERF 2L EHITAEE

Revenue from Contracts with Customers®
KEEFEHZ]A?
Clarifications to HKFRS |5 Revenue from Contracts with Customers?
TR HHEERE I5FKEEL A WA EE
Leases®
HE®
Disclosure Initiative'
wEHE
Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses'
BARBFE IR R EEE
Amendments to HKFRS 12
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities'
BRI HRELERE 125RNERT
RE i E 58 ) i o 1 R
Amendments to HKFRS |
First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards?
BAMBREELE IFNER]
BRRMNEBR RS ERP
Amendments to HKAS 28
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures?
BRGHERIE8FEAIERT
REERRIRAERENRE?

20174 | B I B3k 2 % Rin 0 FE 5

el A 3

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2018 2 R20185F 1 A I Bk z & RmHIEE H
il A 3

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2019 } 201951 A I B3z & RRrIEE H
e 2L

i No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption ¢ If A5 788 T 5% 1114 A2 5 B R (R AR
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont'd)

The Group is currently in the process of assessing the impact of the standards upon
adoption. The Group plans to adopt the above new and amended standards when

they become effective.

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable to the

Group is as follows:

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version of HKFRS 9, bringing
together all phases of the financial instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and
all previous versions of HKFRS 9.The standard introduces new requirements for
classification and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. The Group

expects to adopt HKFRS 9 from | January 2018.

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. Under HKFRS |5, revenue is recognised at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring goods or services to a customer: The principles in HKFRS |5 provide
a more structured approach for measuring and recognising revenue. The standard
also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements,
including disaggregation of total revenue, information about performance obligations,
changes in contract asset and liability account balances between periods and
key judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all current revenue
recognition requirements under HKFRSs. In June 2016, the HKICPA issued
amendments to HKFRS |5 to address the implementation issues on identifying
performance obligations, application guidance on principal versus agent and licences
of intellectual property, and transition. The amendments are also intended to help
ensure a more consistent application when entities adopt HKFRS 15 and decrease
the cost and complexity of applying the standard. The Group expects to adopt
HKFRS 15 on | January 2018.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R TS E

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int |5 Operating Leases — Incentives and
HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form
of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise assets and
liabilities for most leases. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for
lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-term leases. At the commencement
date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e. the
lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during
the lease term (ie, the right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses unless
the right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment property in HKAS 40.The
lease liability is subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the lease liability and
reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will be required to separately recognise the
interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-
of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the lease liability upon the
occurrence of certain events, such as change in the lease term and change in future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine those
payments. Lessees will generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of
the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under
HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from the accounting under HKAS 17. Lessors
will continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in HKAS |7
and distinguish between operating leases and finance leases. The Group expects to
adopt HKFRS 16 on | January 2019 and is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS
|6 upon adoption.
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2.3

2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide disclosures that enable
users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.
The amendments will result in additional disclosure to be provided in the financial

statements. The Group expects to adopt the amendments from | January 2017.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest of generally
not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint

control over those policies.

The Group's investments in associates are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the Group's share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line any

dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive income
of associates are included in profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
respectively. In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in
the equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group's investments in the associates, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates is included as part of the Group's

investments in associates.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RE ER R M AL

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Investments in associates (Cont'd)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or vice
versa, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to
be accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant
influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference
between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of
significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and

proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for sale, it is accounted for
in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued

Obperations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-

related costs are expensed as incurred.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Business combinations and goodwill (Contd)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities
assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host

contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held equity interest
is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is

recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and

subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-controlling interests
and any fair value of the Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired,
the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain

purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is,
from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are

assigned to those units or groups of units.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RE ER R M AL

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 24 FESHEEHE (&)

Business combinations and goodwill (Cont'd)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.

An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the relative value

of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its available-for-sale financial assets measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or
the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their

economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset

in its highest and best use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Fair value measurement (Cont'd)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and
for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of

relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,

based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level | = based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 = based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input

that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in
the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting

period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RE ER R M AL

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing
for an asset is required (other than inventories), the asset's recoverable amount
is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-
generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which

the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in

those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether there
is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist
or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill
is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises,
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy

for that revalued asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and that

person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iily is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of a

parent of the Group;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a

parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an

associate of the third entity;
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RE ER R M AL

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Related parties (Cont d)
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies: (Cont d)

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of

employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in

(a);

(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity); and

(viiiy ~ the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the Group or to the parent of the

Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset

to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts

as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Cont d)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each item
of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful life.

The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 25%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Office equipment 20%
Computer equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful
lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation

method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part initially
recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference

between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised
over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least at each financial year end. As 31 December 2016, the net carrying amount of

intangible assets (other than goodwill) was nil (2015: Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ESE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including the leasehold
interest under an operating lease for a property which would otherwise meet
the definition of an investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes

expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to allocate their cost to their

residual value over its estimated useful life of 37 years when acquired.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if

the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets
to the Group, other than legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held
under capitalised finance leases are included in property, plant and equipment, and
depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the
assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged to profit or loss so as to provide

a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED

98 ANNUAL REPORT 2016

24 FESHEREE (&)

REME

RENERIERTRESBAR, K
BAAE MARATARNEERM:
RESBRELEEMFAN AT
E-REBBREFHEMSAN LI
FET (BREMEEHERBERM)
HNAREVMEEENNENHERE
i) e REMFEKANATE  BER
PIRA - NInTER R RENERESL
AR B TE MR ERRZS - FE5E
RABRBERE EREHZAX

WEREGEREFE DEEKAE
HRUR BB (T 6 PR & 337 < RIER(E
1B

HEEREERR G REEE A
ZEENREENBHHEEETNE S
B

HE

SREERRBRIN LG EERBENE
REB DM ERREE T A ENHE
g 195 R BHEE R LHMBHEE
B HEREMNKATRREES MR
HWRETAEAR L WEREALE (T
BREMEHN) — AR ARREE
ERE -REEXMMUBHERSENE
EFfAME BERRE LREHK
BENMGFAERFES (AREER
B)VEFE-FREENABERNE
HINERRTNE  AGH T EmNEH
WE -



2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Leases (Cont'd)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain
with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are included in non-current
assets, and rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under operating leases net of any incentives received from the lessor

are charged to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial investments, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in the case of financial

assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

Al regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade
date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ESE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 24 FESHEEHE (&)

Investments and other financial assets (Cont'd)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as

follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in other income and gains in profit or loss. The loss arising
from impairment is recognised in profit or loss in finance costs for loans and in other

expenses for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial assets in listed
and unlisted equity investments and debt securities. Equity investments classified
as available for sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category
are those which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and which
may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in market

conditions.

BEIJING SPORTS AND ENTERTAINMENT INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
1 00 ANNUAL REPORT 2016

RERHMWEREE (F)

& E

CREBEENREAFENRIBET X
FeMEENBNOT:

EHRERTE

ERR WA RE BIE & AT et
REREY BE—(EEENS LREN
FITEESRMEBE KNI ER %F
BEHRUERNZARIED #HRK
K (HUREDRERE) 58 - BIERA
TEt AMEAIREE R AR b & - AR
BRERMENA &5 H0E Akl
Ko BRMEHHEBRAERSANE M
Wes B o RENTENBRRBR
APBER (RERME) RAMBER
(BLEMGRIAT 5 ) o HERR -

JRAEZHRE

AHHESRRET EHRIFEHERA
RERBEBREFZFITESREE -7
BRAHEE CBRAREBRDBEAR
EEESEE /R DABETARSELZ
RE -ZBRP 2 EGEFEERER
A& ARSELFIHERARE
RBESHKIEHTREGMHE -



2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Investments and other financial assets (Cont d)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Cont'd)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are subsequently
measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve
until the investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss in other income, or until the investment is determined to
be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-for-
sale investment revaluation reserve to profit or loss in other gains or losses. Interest
earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial investments are reported as
interest income and are recognised in profit or loss as other income in accordance

with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be reliably measured
because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant
for that investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value, such investments

are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its available-for-sale
financial assets in the near term are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the
Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets if management has the ability and

intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category, the fair value
carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost
and any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised in equity
is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment using the
effective interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised cost and the
maturity amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the

effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then

the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M AL

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 24 FESHEEHE (&)
Derecognition of financial assets BERZAERMEE
A financial asset (or; where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group TREE (IMER —HEREEN
of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's — Bk —ARESREEN—7)
consolidated statement of financial position) when: ETSERAE & EBURMER (B AR E

HAR & MR R MIER) -

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired: or 0 WHZBEEMSREREMNE
g p
FEE 8w =X

®  the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset 0 AEECERERMZEREM
or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without FRENENEN  ARE 8
material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and Fl2H ERBRETCENTE
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of AT ERABENEBAER
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially F=AXNERIFERENE
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. F:RQASECEEZEEE

B 4B K EB 1 B\ B K B 4 : =k (b) AR
EEVEEERIREZBEER
AR RER BE & EZ
THEEREHIE-

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or HWAEEEZEWRZEEEMERE
has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it TMEMERNSC AT BN RH - 2
has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither HEBREZEEERG RN
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor W UARHERERE - EASEW EE RS
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred REZIBEERBAEN R R B8R &
asset to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group WEREEZHEENLEGE ~AaEe
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability ERSEFE2EZIABENAIR M
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has BHEAANR -RZBEAT NEBH®
retained. RIEFEE -CEEEEREBERET
RN B R BRI MBI EE
AEe
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred FTEREEERTANFERE BE
asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the ERRHEEREEREX NS
maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay. REENREEAE -
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. An
impairment exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment
may include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate

with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses whether
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant,
or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective

assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of
the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset's original effective

interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ESE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont d)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Cont'd)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account and the loss is recognised in profit or loss. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been

transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases
or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the
allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other

expenses in profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective evidence that an investment or a group

of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference
between its cost (net of any principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in profit or loss, is removed

from other comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont d)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Cont’d)

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for sale, impairment is assessed
based on the same criteria as financial assets carried at amortised cost. However, the
amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference
between the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that investment previously recognised in profit or loss. Future interest income
continues to be accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset using
the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part of finance
income. Impairment losses on debt instruments are reversed through profit or loss if
the subsequent increase in fair value of the instruments can be objectively related to

an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale, objective evidence
would include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of the investment
and “prolonged” against the period in which the fair value has been below
its original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in profit or loss
— is removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as available for sale are not
reversed through the profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment are

recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgement. In
making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among other factors, the duration or

extent to which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M AL

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 24 FESHEEHE (&)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging

instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

Al financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and

borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, and interest-bearing

bank and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as

follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are

derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on

acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

The effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is

discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender
on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the

respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net realisable value is based on estimated

selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are

repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits, and assets

similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ESE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items
recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in

which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at
the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and

their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

J when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill
or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable

profit or loss; and

S in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary

differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Income tax (Cont'd)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax

credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

J when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither

the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

S in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be

recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

the reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M AL

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Income tax (Cont'd)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right
exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred

taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to

the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@)  from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with

ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b) air freight service fee income is recognised when the air freight services are
provided, the timing of which usually coincides with the departure date. This
service fee income will be either recognised at gross or net. The principal or
agent relationships is determined by the arrangement with airlines, integrated

carriers and freight forwarders;

()  from the rendering of services, in the period in which the services are

rendered;

(d)  rental income, on a time proportion basis over lease terms; and

(e) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest method by
applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when

appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the Group's operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render

services as consideration for equity instruments (“'equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to
the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by
an external valuer using a binomial model, further details of which are given in note

26 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in equity-settled share-based
payment expenses together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period
in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting
period until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that

period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when
determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions
being met is assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected
within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but
without an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting
conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or

performance conditions.

2.4

R RS E

FREHBRME (&)
R 5 %A

ARAEEBRETE B ERHAR
BEBRNELERM A BR2EER
B R R AR RS (BRES)
PARR AR S22 77 AV MRER R B - T B 12
HRBIESUBRBATAZRE (T
KEE2Z2RH]) °

BREBETRAGE LR KA T
SRELABZAABEMTE- DR
BETA—RIMNEMLEMRR A E
NEE E—-SHBRNM BRI
26 °

BARGEEZ R FHORA  ERERRK
/SRR 1 415 B R 77 10 HA PR A AR FE
BeESsERAEERD N2
HHAX PR -NEBRHANERE
B IR E 2 X 5 PR 25T 5
X RBRTEBHERNERERARE
R EEBHNR A TARENRE
fhst - IR B MR HE AN SR
B R R PrRER R RET R S R 2
&)

EEOHNR L BRI EER T8
At RBR# ROEM B RBRM B EFFHE
ERZERITOR RN - (ER AR EY
BEREEBORATAHENRER
At MISRBGHERRRREBHLL
BERA - @A B EER R E
SRE) (A B AR IR FAR R SF 57 88 R 11 o BR
FEBIMOBRIE KRB G BRI
FEBHERRNEENDLEEAR
b 74 BV s 52 8 ] ¥ -

EtREEXEXEBRRAA

—z—xzeg 111



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ESE

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Share-based payments(Cont d)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or
service conditions have not been met, no expense is recognised. Where awards
include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided

that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an expense
is recognised as if the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the
award are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial

to the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the
date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new award
is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on
the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were

a modification of the original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in

the computation of earnings per share.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefit scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the

employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiary which operates in Mainland China are
required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. This subsidiary is required to contribute certain percentages of its
payroll costs to the central pension scheme.The contributions are charged to profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension

scheme.
Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Group can no longer

withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring

costs involving the payment of termination benefits.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M AL

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 24 FESHEEHE (&)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, ie, assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the

borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by the

shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the
Company's memorandum and articles of association grant the directors the
authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are

recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company's functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on

settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Foreign currencies (Cont'd)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.
The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair
value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value
of the item (i, translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in

other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and an associate are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their profit or loss
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for

the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a
foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income relating to that

particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value
adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing

rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars

at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M AL

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made
the following judgements, apart from those involving estimations, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property
portfolio. The Group has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of these properties which are leased out on operating leases.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are described below.

Impairment of other non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for all non-
financial assets at the end of each reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested
for impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of
disposal is based on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Cont’d)

Estimation uncertainty (Cont d)

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group maintains an allowance for estimated loss arising from the inability
of its customers to make the required payments. The Group makes its estimates
based on the ageing of its trade receivable balances, customers' creditworthiness,
and historical write-off experience. If the financial condition of its customers was
to deteriorate so that the actual impairment loss might be higher than expected,
the Group would be required to revise the basis of making the allowance and its
future results would be affected. Further details are given in note 18 to the financial

statements.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant
judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated taxes based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences would impact the current income tax and

deferred income tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Estimation of fair value of share-based compensation

The fair values of the shares options granted pursuant to the Company's share
option scheme during the year ended 31 December 2016 were valued by an
independent valuer on the grant date. The valuation requires the Group to make
estimates about the key parameters including expected volatility, risk-free interest
rate, dividend yields and exercise multiple, etc. The grant date fair value of these
options granted during the year ended 31 December 2016 was approximately
HK$36,300,000 (2015: Nil). Further details are given in note 26 to the financial

statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M AL

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group commenced sport and
entertainment business and changed its internal organisation accordingly. For
management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on
their products and services and has two reportable operating segments: (a)
logistics segment provides air freight services in the wholesale market; (b) sport,
entertainment and others segment is a new segment for the year investing in and

operating air dome business and other newly initiated businesses.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, as a result of the change in the composition
of the Group's reportable segments, the Group had one single operating and
reportable segment, the logistics segment, and all of the Group's operating results

were generated from this single segment.

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating segments separately
for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss
before tax is measured consistently with the Group's loss before tax except that
interest income, other investment income, gross rental income, finance costs, as well

as head office and corporate expenses are excluded from such measurement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R RS E

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 4 REPTWER (E)
Sport and,
Year ended 31 December 2016 entertainment
Logistics and others Total
BEWIFNAIBLEE MWin BE RERHM aar
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FERT TR
Segment revenue : DEURES
Sales to external customers RSNEDE P HE 74,144 8,374 82,518
Segment results PEEE (21,179) (20,816) (41,995)
Reconciliation: #hk -
Interest income B WA 298
Other investment income Hin&E WA 2,123
Gross rental income R N 1,927
Corporate and unallocated expenses PERARDEFX (11,998)
Finance costs BEKAR (868)
Loss before tax BrILRIE B (50,513)
Other segment information: Hivp &R :
Impairment losses recognised RERBERZ
in profit or loss REEE 3,494 1,790 5,284
Depreciation and amortisation WEREH 1,774 2,449 4,223
Capital expenditure* BRI * - 15,052 15,052
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment including * BAEYBIERENE HERSZE

assets from the acquisition of subsidiaries.
Geographical information

During the year ended 3| December 2016, the Group derived almost all of its
revenue from its operating entities located in Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and
Mainland China. While in 2015, the Group derived 70% of its revenue from its
operating entities located in Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and Mainland China, and the
remaining 30% revenue from its operating entities located in other countries and
regions.

As at 3| December 2016 and 2015, the Group's non-current assets were mainly
located in Hong Kong.

Information about a major customer

During the year, there was no external customer accounted for 10% or more of the
Group's total revenue (2015: Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M AL

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5 W R AR KE
Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for W FREHEEMNEREBEFH
returns and trade discounts, and the value of services related during the year. (HBRBREREZIFMEE) LRBE
FEE-
An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows: Wizt Hfh i A R a2 AT
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TET
Revenue Yz
Sales of goods EmiHE 8,338 =
Rendering of services R RS 74,180 510,793
82,518 510,793
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
Other income Hip A
Bank interest income RITHEHA 298 245
Service income MRASUA 223 804
Other investment income Hipig & A 2,123 -
Gross rental income R PN R 1,927 =
Others Hitp 670 230
5,241 1,279
Gains iy &
Reversal of impairment of investment properties REWMFRERE (KF3)
(note 13) 2,307 =
Gain on write-back of trade payables* B F R FOE 2 BB g+ 10,226 =
12,533 1,279
17,774 1,279
X The gain was resulted from waiver of trade payables by one of the Group's suppliers in ki W hEEEREAEEHF—2Y
logistics business. MEBHRERE 2B EMNRIE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R RS E

LOSS BEFORE TAX 6. BRBAEE
The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): AEERBABEIEME, (BT A)
THIBERER:
2016 2015
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
P E TR TET
Cost of inventories sold ERFERA 8,065 -
Cost of services provided EREREKAR 65,865 441,897
Depreciation e 12,13 4223 3,128
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESE - 447
Minimum lease payments REME RERERNK
under operating leases 5,530 8,736
Auditor's remuneration ZER B & 2,344 2,466
Employee benefit expenses EERAFAX
(excluding directors’ and (TREESEK
chief executive's remuneration FETHABEHM (K8) ) :
(note 8)):
Wages and salaries IERE® 19,793 40,478
Equity-settled share option expense PARR A7 45 5 2 BB AR R B 2 7,978 =
Pension scheme contributions** RRGET B e 2,703 3419
30,474 45018
Foreign exchange differences, net* BE 5 2R - R 1,039 4724
Impairment on goodwill* PR (E* 14 - 630
Impairment of items of property, W% BEREBEE ZRE*
plant and equipment* 12 2,028 829
Impairment of intangible assets* B AERE* - | 429
(Reversal of impairment)/ BEWME CRERE) RE
impairment of investment properties 13 (2,307) 9,492
Impairment of trade receivables B2 RWHIERE 18 816 3,238
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HERHEESREEBE
financial assets* 4,415 -
Write-off of other current assets* Hofth 7% B & 2 g > 2,440 =
Loss on disposal of items of property, &M BFERREEE 2 BE*
plant and equipment* 99 703
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries* HEKB AR EBE* 29 1,908 =

i These items are included in “Other expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

* At 31 December 2016, the Group had no forfeited contributions available to reduce
its contributions to the pension scheme(s) in future years (2015: Nil).

* ZERBEFAGABAENAMZEK

mRAZ [ERX] -

# PN0ICEIA3R AEEBERR

Yotk A A DR SR ORI F R ER
PRETBIRGESR (20155 &)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M AL

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BERAE
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: MEKARZ AT :
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTERT FTET
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts RITEFRREZFE 239 1,221
Interest on shareholder’s loans BRERE AR 626 43
Interest on finance lease liabilities HEHESAENS 3 13
868 1,277
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION 8 EERIERTHASHMH
Directors and chief executive's remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to AERFEERTETHABHMIBRE L
the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies MR A BB R EMEBIE383(1) @) (b)
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits OROERRR (KBEESMEEH)
of Directors) Regulation, is as follows: RBIE2E BB T
Group
FEE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Fees ik 1,670 1,121
Other emoluments: H it B -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RRREYA S - 3,486
Equity-settled share option expense P 12 4 R AR T 2 3,721 =
Pension scheme contributions RAREETEIHR - 18
3,721 3,504
5,391 4,625
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R RS E

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION (Cont’d) 8 EBERIETHASHM (&)
During the vear, certain directors were granted share options, in respect of their AEE AETESRBERAKEMRE
services to the Group, under the share option scheme of the Company, further HRRBIREB AR R B B ER
details of which are set out in note 26 to the financial statements. The fair value of RERRAE - — T BRI IR M=
such options, which has been recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period, 26 ZENEBEHRATEERRTHEALZ
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in the financial BREZAABEERRLANEE -
statements for the current year is included in the above directors and chief MRAFEFARBREZEEE A
executive's remuneration disclosures. EXZEERFETHAEHERE
A o
(@)  Independent non-executive directors @ BYUFHTES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the year were AEEENBIFRTES 2 M
as follows: M

Equity-settled

share option

Fees expense Total
BREEE
ok BRI X #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THER TERT
2016 20165

Independent non-executive directors B I HTEE
Mr. Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming (note (i)) 24 [BI8A %5 & (FiT&E()) 120 207 327
Mr. Xin Luo Lin (note (i)) FERMEAE (BHEEG) ) 120 207 327
Mr. Pan Lihui (note (i)) EIBAEAE (M) 120 207 327
Mr.Tse Man Kit, Keith (note (ii)) A S A (B RE (i) ) 10 207 317
470 828 1,298

LRRE X EERMERAT
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B R M AL

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION (Cont’d) 8 EERIETHAEHH (&)
(@) Independent non-executive directors (Cont'd) @ BIUFHTES(A)
Equity-settled
share option
Fees expense Total
BEEE
fidkn FEHER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR THT
2015 20155
Independent non-executive directors B FHTES
Mr. Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming (note (i) 4£[EIRR ¢ A& (FRE()) 83 - 83
Mr. Xin Luo Lin (note (i)) SERMEE (KREG) 83 - 83
Mr. Pan Lihui (note (i) BB A (HEEG)) 83 = 83
Mr:Wei Jin Cai (note (iif)) PR T (P aE (i) ) 160 - 160
Dr. Zhang Xianlin (note (i) REMIE L (FTREGi)) 160 - 160
Dr.Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony (note (i) E&FZ I8 I (B 5 (i) ) 180 = 180
749 = 749
Note i; The directors were appointed on 23 April 2015. Bk : ZABEEMR20I5F4H238
BZRfE-
Note ii; The director was appointed on 25 January 2016. BisTii: A EER016F A25H
BZE-
Note iii: The directors resigned on 23 April 2015. BifsEii : B EEM2015F4H238
BHE-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION (Cont’d) 8

(b)  Executive directors and the chief executive

R RS E

ESRIETHRABEHM (&)
b) BTESRTIETHAER

Salary, Equity-
allowances settled Pension
and benefits ~ share option scheme
Fees in kind expense contributions Total
e RER hEEE Bhe
we EFE BRERX HE [:38 @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TR THER TAT TR
2016 216
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Hui Yebi (note (i)) HER L4 (M) 180 - 207 - 387
Mr.Niu Zhongje (note (i)) HEERE (M) 180 - 207 - 387
Mr. Zhu Shixing (note (i)) AR A (M) 180 - - - 180
Mr. Lam Ka Tak (note (i)) HEEEE (M) 180 - 207 - 387
Ms. Leung Pui Man (note (iv) 2mELL (FFEw) 69 - - - 69
Mr. Zhang Tingzhe (note (v)) REFLE (M) 165 - 207 - n
Mr. Liu Xue Heng (note (vi)) FBEEE (M) 165 - 2,065 - 2230
MrTsui Ngai, Eddie (note (vil)) BRI (PR (vi)) 8l - - - 8l
1,200 - 2893 - 4093
2015 2015
Executive directors HITEZS
Mr. Hui Yebi (note (i)) AEE %4 (M) 124 - - - 124
Mr.Niu Zhongjie (note (i)) EERAE (W3E0) 124 - - - 124
Mr. Zhu Shixing (note (i)) AR & (M) = - & - -
Mr. Lam Ka Tak (note (i) WEEEE (M) - - - - =
Ms. Leung Pui Man (note (iv) PRELL (W) 124 B - ~ 124
MrYu Ho Yuen, Sunny (note (i) RVEIR A& (B EE(i)) - 1312 - 6 1318
Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard (note (iil) 28754 5t & (BiFE (i) ) = 908 = 6 914
Mr. Law Kai Lo, Nikii (note (i) ﬁﬁfiﬁﬂﬂ GEIO) - 1266 - 6 1272
n 3486 . 18 3876
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M AL

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION (Cont’d)

(b)  Executive directors and the chief executive (Cont'd)

Note i:

Note ii:

Note iii:

Note iv:

Note v:

Note vi:

Note vii:

The directors were appointed on 23 April 2015.

The directors were appointed on 24 December 2015.

The directors resigned on 23 April 2015.

The directors was appointed on 23 April 2015 and resigned on 18 May
2016.

The director was appointed on 25 January 2016.

The director was appointed on 25 January 2016, and elected as the
chairman of the board and appointed as the chief executive officer of the

Company on 8 April 201 6.

The director was appointed on 20 July 2016.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief executive

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included one director (2015: three
directors), details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining four (2015: two) highest paid employees

who are neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:

R RS E

LEBEHHES
AEEhEERFNERRE—RES
(015F: =2EF) REFMZFE
B LIRS o RIERPD & (20155
ZIRRBAEEESHMESR (KX
FREENMFETETRAR) ZFHEN
N

2016 2015

HK$°000 HK$'000

TER FAT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RUEREMNZE 3,110 3,620
Equity-settled share option expense P 12 i R AR A T 2 315 -
Pension scheme contributions RIRE MBI 138 32
3,563 3,652
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M AL

9.  FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Cont’d) 9. HEBREFMES (&)
The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid employees whose TN A TSR 2 IFEFRIFFBTH
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: ABZESFMESHB T :
Number of employees
EEHE

2016 2015
HK$500,001 to HK$ 1,000,000 500,001 7 7T~ 1,000,0007% 7T 3 =
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7 7T 1,500,0007% 7T I
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 4 7T— 2,000,000/ 7T - -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 4 7T~ 2,500,000/ 7T -

4 2
During the year and in prior years, share options were granted to a non-director REEFERNEFE HAEBERRAK
and non-chief executive highest paid employee in respect of his services to the SEREREMEATFESTHE ST
Group, further details of which are included in the disclosures in note 26 to the BABZBEEHEERTHERE 5@
financial statements. The fair value of such options, which has been recognised in A EEM BRI 26NRE - ZEE
profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and the s ANEBE(ERGEBHNERR
amount included in the financial statements for the current year is included in the FEER) DR B BEE - mA AR
above non-director and non-chief executive highest paid employees' remuneration FREMBHREAZSREE LTSS
disclosures. FEETHABZEEMSPHRE-
10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 0.  FREHiRA<

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) on

the estimated assessable profits during the year

Macau complementary tax is levied at progressive rates ranging from 3% to 9% on
the taxable income above MOP32,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$31,000)
but below MOP300,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$292,000), and thereafter
at a fixed rate of 12%. For the years ended 3| December 2016 and 2015, a
special complementary tax incentive was provided to the effect that tax free
income threshold was increased from MOP32,000 to MOP600,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$3 1,000 to HK$584,000).
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RERNBBFEH oGt EET S
MiR165% (20155 : 165% ) T K &HiR
Bt

BP0 Bt = 732,000 P9 7T (48
& R #£931,0007% 7T ) 18 1 7300,000/2 P9
7T (18 & R #9292,0007%8 7T ) KO J& 3R F1 I
ANBN FIREI%H) R Fi K@
FReRlREEN X %M 82
2016F K20I15F 12A31 B I FEERE
RRI R RE - At ERTRARN R
75 %8 F132,000/2 P9 7T, 1% 600,000 7T
(FBE P #)31,0007 7T 584,000/ 7T ) ©



INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd)

Taxation outside Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China has been calculated on

the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the

countries in which the Group operates.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R RS E

FrgHiRx (&)

BB R R BIRRE SN EIR TOAR
BEAMGEEREEN RS EEE M

ERFBRTHETE -

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET
Current — Hong Kong BH-B%
Charge for the year FAXH 211 927
Underprovision in prior years RBEFEEETR - 2
Current — Macau EH-RM
Charge for the year FAXH 1,214 134
Current — Elsewhere BH-HiE
Charge for the year FAZH - 432
Deferred (note 24) BT (P7E24) 180 737
Total tax charge for the year FARRIBT T B 1,605 3232

EtREEXEXEBRRAA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M AL

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to loss before tax at the statutory
rates for the countries or jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of its

subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates are as follows:

0. S8 (&)
ERRGHAEEARR R REKES
B R RAEMER OEER R E

AR BERRKRFEE 2GRN

N
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FTET
Loss before tax R Tt Al 5 18 (50,513) (35,602)
Tax calculated at tax rates applicable to profits of 13 F3 7A & [T B A 7)) Il A9
the respective subsidiaries HEFERHIE (10,688) (5956)
Income not subject to tax AU (64) (405)
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose PAHRAX 4,015 311
Adjustments in respect of current tax of SLBEERRE E BT S E
previous periods - 2
Derecognition of prior years deferred RIEBRBEFEECHELE
tax assets - 1,840
Derecognition of withholding tax RIEHER R B A K A& R
on unremitted earnings of subsidiaries B2 AR ER A B FEMH
in Mainland China and Taiwan - (175)
Tax losses utilised from the previous periods HiHATHEESE 2 BBEE - (236)
Tax losses not recognised RERZ B EE 8,342 7851
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate ERERERBEAEZHEX N 1,605 3232

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic loss per share amount is based on the loss for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of ,041,282,049 (2015:811,884,658) in issue during the

year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share amount presented for the
year ended 31 December 2016 in respect of a dilution as the impact of the share
options outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share amount

presented.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R RS E

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS

OF THE PARENT (Cont'd)

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the year ended

31 December 2015.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Il BAREERESEAREESRER

(&

HEWNISFRA3NBILFE  AEEES

EEEC BT AR

12 YE BEKERE

Leasehold Furniture and Office  Computer Motor
improvements fixtures  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
HEXE GAREKE BORE EERE "E -
At 3| December 2016 M2016E12A318
At 31 December 2015 and at R20I5F 128318 R
| January 2016: WIEEIRIA:
Cost AR 889 1217 170 1,661 8471 12,408
Accumulated depreciation RHAFERAE
and impairment (863) (1,192) (60) (1,264) (2,392) (5,771)
Net carrying amount REFE 2 25 10 397 6,079 6,637
At | January 2016, net of accumulated  R2016F 1A 1B -
depreciation and impairment NG EFAFERAE 2 25 10 397 6,079 6,637
Additions AE 12,190 1,686 822 253 - 14951
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 28) WEEH B2 A (Fizs) - - 18 83 - 101
Disposals e - - (4 (69) (29) (102)
Depreciation provided during the year ~ FRFHEH & (115) (1) (1) (226) (1,562) (1916)
Impairment (note 6) i (Ke) (1,790) - Q) (236) - (2028)
Exchange realigiment 5 4 - - (10) (20) (26)
At 31 December 2016, net of accumulated 1220164128318 *
depreciation and impainment Nk 25 E RoAlE 10,315 1,710 932 192 4,468 17617
At 31 December 2016 120165124318
Cost AR 13,009 2898 978 1,185 8,075 26,145
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 25147 & KAl B (2,694) (1,188) (46) (993) (3,607) (8,528)
Nt carrying amount REFE 10315 1,710 932 192 4,468 17617
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B s R AR B A
12.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd) 12 ¥ -BERSKE(F)
Leasehold  Furniture and Office  Computer Motor
improvements fixtures  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
HERE BARKE HARE EERE e @t
At 31 December 2015 R0I5F 128318
At | January 2015: RWISEIRIR:
Cost KA 3,167 2,191 1,543 5082 7699 19,682
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 25147 & KRB (2444) (1906) (816) (2978) (2336) (10480)
Net carrying amount REFE m 285 77 2,104 5363 9202

At | January 2015, net of accumulated — F20154 1A IR -

depreciation and impairment Nk 2 ERAE Jox; 285 77 2,104 5363 9202
Additions RE 2l 14 I3 3| 2528 2807
Disposals k3 (@17 9) (182) (673) (102) (1,383)
Depreciation provided during the year ~~ FRFHETE (281) (113) (198) (739) (1662) (299)
Impairment (note 6) e (Kse) (179) (95) (235) (284) (36) (829)
Exchange realignment TR (41) (57) (15) 42) (12) (167)

At 31 December 2015, net of accumulated #2015 124318

depreciation and impairment Nk 25 E RoRlE 2% 25 110 397 6079 6637
At 31 December 2015: R0I5F12A318 :
Cost AR 889 1217 170 | 661 8471 12,408
Accumulated depreciation ZAFERAE

and impairment (863) (1,192) (60) (1264) (2392) (5771)
Net carrying amount REFE 26 25 [0 397 6,079 6,637
Impairment of property, plant and equipment for the years ended 31 December EE016FR20I5FNA3ALEFEN
2016 and 2015 were recognised in other expenses. M- BERREREENEMFE A
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R RS E

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 3. REWE
2016 2015
At cost model BB R HK$'000 HK$'000
FiER TET
Carrying amount at | January RIAIBZEREE 87,000 -
Acquisition of a subsidiary W g —FE BT B 2 7] - 95,664
Capitalised subsequent expenditure HigMZ BRIt - 963
Reversal of impairment/(impairment) AERE CRE) 2,307 (9492)
Depreciation* FrE* (2,307) (135)
Carrying amount at 3| December RI2A318 ZRAE 87,000 87,000
& Depreciation of investment property for the year ended 3| December 2016 was * EEWICENRAIBILEFEEZRED

recognised in other expenses.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no unprovided contractual obligations for

future repairs and maintenance (2015: Nil).

The Group's investment properties consist of two commercial properties in
Hong Kong. The investment properties are leased to a shareholder and a third
party under operating leases. An independent valuation of the Group's investment
properties was performed by the valuer, Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and
Advisory Limited, and the fair value of the investment properties was determined to
be HK$87,000,000 as at 3| December 2016 (2015: HK$87,000,000).

RZPERNAMATH#ER -

20165F 128318 RERB W E KR
B ARRAEE MREAHEMT (20155
&) o

AEENREMEOEMBLRES
HREENE - ZEREMERBLENR
EHT—ERER—EBBIE=F K
REREVMENBE L GEHEEM
MEBITEETMREAGRARE
7 RIEEMERWIFNRAIIBHA
A BEE T 587,000,000/ 7T (20154
87,000,000/ 7T ) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M AL

3. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont’d)

Further particulars of the Group's investment properties are included on page 172

of the annual report.

The following table analyses the fair value measurement of the investment

properties by valuation method.

REWE (&)
REBRENMEZ E—THBINLE
WEINE -

TREFIREETAEADNREDER
REEFENN-

Fair value measurements at 3| December 2016 and 2015 using

R0I6ERWISFRANIBATHARTENAABE

Quoted Significant Significant

prices in observable unobservable

active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

EER  BEMHMT  BEMFW

TENEE BREARE BERAME
(Z18R) (828) (%3%) #st
Commercial properties Description HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
GE3ES P8 FTER FTER FTER FTER
Commercial properties EEME - 87,000 - 87,000

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements between Level

|, Level 2 and Level 3 (2015: Nil).

The Group's investment properties was valued at 31 December 2016 by
independent professionally qualified valuer who hold a recognised relevant
professional qualification and has recent experience in the locations and segments
of the investment properties valued. For all investment properties, their current use
equates to the highest and best use. The valuation was determined using the market
approach. Sales prices of comparable properties in close proximity are adjusted for
differences in key attributes such as property size. The most significant input into this

valuation approach is price per square foot.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R RS

GOODWILL [k
HK$'000
THET

At | January 2015: R20I15FI1A18 :

Cost ZEN 1,187

Accumulated impairment RERE (557)
Net carrying amount REFE 630
Cost at | January 2015, net of accumulated impairment 20151 A1 B ZBA - Bk REtRIE 630
Impairment during the year FRRE (630)
At 31 December 2015 R2015%124318 -
At 3| December 2015: P20155F 124318 :

Cost XX 1,187

Accumulated impairment ZETRE (1,187)

Net carrying amount AREF (B -
Cost at | January 2016, net of accumulated impairment R2016F 1 AR Z A HIkR REHRE -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 28) Wi rt B 2 A (FisE2s) 764
Cost and net carrying amount at 3| December 2016 2016512831 B 2 A R EREE 764
At 31 December 2016: 72016 12A318 :

Cost XX 1951

Accumulated impairment ZETRE (1,187)

Net carrying amount AREFE 764

Goodwill acquired through business combinations during the year is allocated

to trading products cash-generating units of approximately HK$690,000 and

entertainment cash-generating units of approximately HK$74,000, respectively. For

impairment testing purpose, the recoverable amount of both cash— generating units

had been determined based on a value in use calculation. During the year ended 3|
December 2016, the impairment of goodwill was nil (2015: HK$630,000).

AEEEREBEHERENTED
DRPHERFERBREELEML
690,000/ T R IR IR S EE B L
74,0007 7T  BURERIETM S - MIBRE
EEBA KBS EIRETAEER
EET -HE0I6FNAJNBLEFEE
EEREAST (20154 : 630,000/87T) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RE ER R M AL

15.  AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 15 AHHESHEE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FAT
At | January RIAIE 13,605 15,653
Net gain/(loss) transferred to BRZHEHMEIERE
other comprehensive income Wz, (EE)FE 653 (2,048)
Disposal HE (14,258) -
At 3| December R12A318 - 13,605
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
Key management insurance: FTEEERERR:
Fair value of the insurance contracts, REBREHDAREE UETE
denominated in US$ - 13,605

During the year ended 3| December 2016, after the resignation of three of the
Group's key management personnel whose lives were insured under the insurance
contracts, the Group, as seller, entered into the assignment and transfer agreements
with these three persons, as purchaser, pursuant to which the Group assigned
and transferred to the purchaser all the seller's rights, title and interest in and to
the insurance policy for a total cash consideration of HK$12,000,000 to be paid
before 31 December 2017. As at 3| December 2016, the unpaid consideration of
HK$ 12,000,000 was recorded in the Group's other receivables.
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BEWIFNAINBLEEE REALHE
RTFEEBAB (REHRBRRERE
NEBASRRIBEMER NEE (1
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17.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R RS

l6. FTEHR BERAMEYRRE

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
Prepayments HERRIE 8413 1,094
Deposits Be 9,883 7,370
Other receivables H & e 5R0R 14,364 2,118
32,660 10,582
Less: Non-current portion B EmBE S
Deposits Be (4,969) (299)
Prepayments BRIE (4,825) (32)
(9,794) (331)
22,866 10,251
None of the above asset is either past due or impaired. FEENRBERTARRE
INVENTORIES 7. BE&
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
TRERx TAT
Finished goods 25K i 521 -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M AL

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES 8. EZEWFE
2016 2015
HK$000 HK$'000
TERx FAT
Trade receivables B 5 e W R 8,484 74729
Impairment R E (1,832) (3,238)
6,652 71,491

The Group's sales are mainly made on (i) cash on delivery; or (ii) credit terms of 30
to 60 days. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements

over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting period,

based on the invoice date and net of provisions, is as follows:

AEENHEEFEROEINTR: K
(iN30FE608 {5 EHIMEST - A B &k
HE SRKFIAES A ERER R
Hi=ERE - B S EYGRBET B -

EHRMFENBEPRREZRAH
BAIRR BB 2 R DT T -

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within | month & B AR 5212 39,735
| to 2 months | 221 A 577 21,678
2 to 3 months 2Z31E A 201 7,540
Over 3 months HiE3(E A 662 2538
6,652 71491
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables are as follows:

R ESE

EZ WA (&)
EPRUHBZBEREEHNT :

2016 2015

HK$°000 HK$'000

THERT FTET

At beginning of year REA] 3,238 -
Impairment losses recognised BHRAREERE 816 3238
Amount written off as uncollectible 35 7 AT W (o] & 2B (2222) -
1,832 3,238

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade receivables is a provision for
individually impaired trade receivables of HK$ 1,832,000 (2015: HK$3,238,000) with
a carrying amount before provision of HK$ 1,832,000 (2015: HK$3,238,000).

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not individually nor collectively

considered to be impaired is as follows:

A LIE Z UGB R E RGN TR
RBESOREE 5 R WKIE 832,000 7T
A £5 (20154 © 3,238,000/ 7T ) + H
1% B BR T 1B 41,832,000 7T (20154 :
3,238,000/ 7T ) °

W BB o KRR AR AR B 5 IR
EOREDTIT

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTER FTET

Neither past due nor impaired AE IR E 5212 39,735
Within | month past due | A A8 EA 577 21,678
| to 2 months past due | 22216 A %8 EA 201 7,540
2 to 3 months past due 2E3ME A B 423 886
Over 3 months past due HaiE31E A 8 H 239 652
6,652 71,491

LRRE X EERMERAT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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8. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont’d) 8.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large number
of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history of default. Based
on past experience, the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not

been a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully

EZBWE (&)

BARBH T ARREN RIS RAE
W BRI EE O ZHOTRFP 1R
BRAERR KNARANEFAR ZF
RHBAELHERE DREEEXR
PELREAES  BERDRR/ATE

recoverable. g o
9. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS 9. RERBEEEVYREEFFEN
2016 2015
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt FTEx FAT
Cash and bank balances Be MIR1T4 5% 306,389 54,684
Short-term bank deposits FHISRITIE R - 2723
306,389 57417
Less: Pledged cash at bank and wEEFRTRE R

short-term deposits ySEELYEE Y 22 - (6,388)
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEEY 306,389 51,029

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of the Group
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") amounted to HK$38,416,000 (2015:
HK$9,847,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to

conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. The
bank balance and pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no

recent history of default.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R RS

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 0. EZEARERESER

RBEHR REZFFZAGELNES
N RBRENREORE MO :

An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of the reporting period,

based on the invoice date, is as follows:

21.

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000

FE T FAT

Within | month & B AR 5,591 30,379
| to 2 months | 221E A 424 7.44)
2 to 3 months 2E3E A 232 2,572
Over 3 months 3E A E 1,955 25,670
8,202 66,063

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on terms of 30

to 60 days upon receipts of suppliers’ invoices.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

B RNFARSTER—REREE
B RILI0E0E NEE

2. EBfEATUEREER

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTER FET

Accruals &M 22,454 18,384

Deposits received BliEe 3,326 3,666

Other payables Ho At 1~ 301 792 46

Amount due to non-controlling interests JE I IE R AR #E 2 R 1A - 284

Total Bt 26,572 22,380
Less: Non-current portion W 3EmENED D

Deposit received Blize (774) -

25,798 22,380

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of three months.

HiEARA/ T BLAMEAZF

AR -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R TS E

22. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS FTERITER
2016 2015
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
BBERIE %) BMA TELT EBREMNE®%) NS TET
Current BN &
Bank overdrafts RITEX On demand
- - - 252583 BB 771
Bank loans RITER - - - 25-34 2016 24377
- 25,148

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had total banking facilities of nil (2015:
HK$ 136,588,000, of which bank borrowings of approximately HK$25,148,000 were
drawn down and bank guarantees of approximately HK$3 1,665,000 were utilised).

Certain of the Group's bank facilities as at 2015 were secured by:

() Anunlimited guarantee from the Company and its certain subsidiaries;

(i) A guarantee from the Company to the extent of HK$10,000,000;

(if)  An unlimited guarantee from Mr.Yu Ho Yuen, Mr. Mak Chi Hung and Mr. Law
Kai Lo, owners of ASR Victory Limited, the immediate and ultimate holding

company of the Group before 12 January 2015;

(iv) A charge over bank deposits from Mr.Yu Ho Yuen, Mr. Mak Chi Hung and Mr:
Law Kai Lo in the aggregate amount of not less than HK$10,000,000;

(v) A charge over the Group's bank deposits in the amount of HK6,388,000; and

(vi)  An assignment over the life insurance policies covering Mr.Yu Ho Yuen, Mr:
Mak Chi Hung and Mr Law Kai Lo.
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M2016FE12A318  NEBEHEEIRITE
BBEAT (20155 : 136,588,000/ T *
H A 4925,148 00078 IR 1T S E 1
B R #931,665,00078 TR 1T ERE 8
A) e

20155 AEE 2 ETRITRE BN
TEBEERF:

() REXARREETHERAZ
BEIRBER

(i) REZARRRIERI0,0000008 7T :

iy REASKER0I5FIANRBREIZ
B RFREERABASR Victory
Limited# B A REREE B
HRERBEREE CERBE
&R

vy REREE BEHEEREE
PSS £ F10,0000007 7T
RITFER 2 A
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23.

24.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R ESE

LOANS FROM A SHAREHOLDER 3. RREXK
As at 31 December 2016, the loan from a shareholder of HK$175,156,000 was R2016F12A3IB - BRRER
unsecured, interest bearing at 3.0% per annum (2015: HK$20,043,000 bearing 175,156,000 7T & S H 1 - L F FI X
interest at 2.5% per annum) and repayable on demand. The carrying amounts of 3.0%&t 2 (20155 : 20,043,000 7T * BA
loans from a shareholder approximated their fair values and were denominated FRE25%:E ) RARERER - IRE
in Hong Kong dollars. On 23 March 2017, the shareholder agreed not to EXWMEAEREEQNABERE LN
demand repayment of the loan of HK$175,000,000 and interest accrued before AT E - R2017F3A230 RREF
|6 December 2018, BR2018F12H16ARI TN EREEER
175,000,0007%8 7T K FE T M) 8. ©
DEFERRED TAX 4 EEHIE
The movements in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) are as follows: BLEHBEELE,/ (BB 2EBHNT:
Depreciation
allowance
in excess
of related
Withholding tax depreciation Tax losses Total
AR E
BAHR 2 ERE HIBEEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TAET TAT TAT
At | January 2015 R20I15F 1 A 18 (175) (981) 1,840 684
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to F AR Bz AFT A/
profit or loss during the year ($0Bp) 2 EFEF IR 175 928 (1,840) (737)
Gross deferred tax liabilities FA20155 124318 &
at 31 December 2015 and 016FIHIAZ
| January 2016 BERIEE BRE - (53) - (53)
Deferred tax charged to FARNBRANGKZ
profit or loss during the year EERIA = (180) - (180)
Gross deferred tax liabilities R2016F 1283182
at 31 December 2016 ERERIERERARE - (233) - (233)

tREEXEXREBRRAA
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24.

DEFERRED TAX (Cont’d)

The Group has tax losses of HK$ 123,646,000 (2015: HK$83,319,000). Except for
tax losses amounting to HK$71,422,000 (2015: HK$51,841,000) that can be carried
forward indefinitely to offset against future taxable income, the Group's remaining
unrecognised tax losses will expire in one to ten years. Deferred tax assets have
not been recognised in respect of these losses and other deductible temporary
differences as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some
time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be available against

which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied
on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from | January 2008
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group is
therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries
and associates established in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from
| January 2008. As at 31 December 2015 and 2016, the balance of withholding tax
liabilities is nil as the Group's subsidiaries and associates in the PRC had accumulated

losses since 2015.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ¥R AR Y R
SHARE CAPITAL PLI: %N
Shares 47
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THET
Authorised: ATE
4,000,000,000 (2015:4,000,000,000) 4,000,000,0008%
ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each (2015%F : 4,000,000,0004% )
FAREH00057% T H) & B A 20,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER:
,168,230,000 (2015:937,860,000) I,168,230,000/%
ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each (20154F : 937,860,0000% )
FAREH00057% T HY & B A 5,841 4,689
A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as follows: ARBNBRAZBHENT -
Number of
shares in issue Share capital
BT
RO BE B
HK$'000
TET
At | January 2015 F2015F 1 A18 806,860,000 4,034
Issue of shares BITRAD 131,000,000 655
At 31 December 2015 and | January 2016 20156128318 %2016 1 A1 B 937,860,000 4,689
Issue of shares (note) BT (ML) 230,370,000 [,152
At 31 December 2016 RR20165F 124318 ,168,230,000 5,841

LEBE YL EREMERAT
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25.

26.

SHARE CAPITAL (Cont'd)
Shares (Cont'd)

Note:

On 5 February 2016, the Company and About Capital Management (HK) Co., Limited (the
“Subscriber”) entered into the subscription agreement pursuant to which the Company had
agreed to allot and issue, and the Subscriber had agreed to subscript for 30,370,000 shares
at the subscription price of HK$0.65 per share. A total of 30,370,000 shares were allotted
and issued on 25 February 2016.The net proceeds received from the subscription of shares
were approximately HK$19,680,000, after deducting relevant expenses of HK$6 1,000, and the
net subscription price was HK$0.648 per placing share. The nominal value of these shares of
HK$ 152,000 was credited to share capital and the balance of HK$19,528,000 was credited to
share premium.

On 8 June 2016, the Company and Vision Finance International Company Limited (the
“Placing Agent”) entered into the placing agreement pursuant which the Company had
conditionally agreed to placing through the Placing Agent for 200,000,000 shares at the
subscription price of HK$0.7 per share (the “Subscription B"). A total of 200,000,000 shares
were allotted and issued on |5 August 2016.The net proceeds received from the subscription
of shares were approximately HK$136,500,000, after deducting relevant expenses of
HK$3,500,000, and the net subscription price was HK$0.683 per placing share. The nominal
value of these shares of HK$1,000,000 was credited to share capital and the balance of

HK$ 135,500,000 was credited to share premium.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group's operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the
Company's directors, other employees of the Group, suppliers of goods or services
to the Group, customers of the Group, the Company's shareholders, and any non-
controlling shareholder in the Company's subsidiaries. The Scheme became effective
on 3 December 201 | and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in

force for 10 years from that date.
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26.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitted to be
granted under the Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 30% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any
| 2-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders'

approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of
the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share options granted to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the Company,
or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of the Company's shares
at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any |2-month period, are

subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 2| days from the date
of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$ ! in total by the grantee.
The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by the directors,
and commences after a vesting period of one to three years and ends on a date
which is not later than five years from the date of offer of the share options or the

expiry date of the Scheme, if earlier:

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors, but may not be
less than the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company's shares
on the date of offer of the share options; and (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing
price of the Company's shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the

date of offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at

shareholders” meetings.

26.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RE ER R M AL

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd) % BRESE (F)
The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during the year: ATRERABRERETEMARITRZER
1
2016 2015
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options  exercise price of options
e INHE 1
TEE BRERE TEE  BREHRE
HK$ '000 HK$ ‘000
per share per share
BREBT F& BRAET T
At | January RIAIR - - 0915 6,900
Granted during the year FREHEN 0.852 68,180 = =
Forfeited during the year FNEERK 0.764 (1,936) - -
Cancelled during the year FANEFTH - - 0915 (6,900)
At 31 December R12A318 0.899 66,244 = =
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options outstanding as at the R|MERR - mARITREREZTEE
end of the reporting period are as follows: RATHEEMT :
2016
Number of options Exercise price Exercise period
BREHE TEE T
'000 HK$
per share
TR BRER
note (a)
56,564 0.764 M3 (a)
note (b)
9,680 |.384 H 3 (b)
66,244
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26.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

Notes:

(@)  First 30% of the options granted will be vested in one year from 8 April 2016, second
40% of the options granted will be vested in two years from 8 April 2016 and
remaining 30% of the options granted will be vested in three years from 8 April 2016.
Upon the lapse of the vesting period, the share options are exercisable until 7 April
2026.

(b)  First 30% of the options granted will be vested in one year from |12 December 2016,
second 40% of the options granted will be vested in two years from 12 December
2016 and remaining 30% of the options granted will be vested in three years from
|2 December 2016. Upon the lapse of the vesting period, the share options are

exercisable until | | December 2026.

The fair value of the share options granted during the year was HK$36,300,000
(weighted average of HK$0.53 each) (2015: Nil), of which the Group recognised
a share option expense of HK$ 11,699,000 (2015: Nil) during the year ended 3|
December 2016.

The fair value of share options granted during the year was estimated as at the date
of grant using a binomial model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. The following table lists the inputs to the model

used:

Dividend yield (%) =

Expected volatility (%) 75.43-80.23
Risk-free interest rate (%) 127-1.58
Exercise multiple 22-2.8

26.

R RS
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RE ER R M AL

26.

27.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

No share option was exercised during the years ended 3| December 2016 and
2015.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 66,244,000 share options
outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding share options
would, under the present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of
66,244,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital
of approximately HK$331,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company had 66,244,000
share options outstanding under the Scheme, which represented approximately

5.7% of the Company's shares in issue as at that date.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the current
and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on

pages 76 to 77 of the financial statements.
(@) Capital reserve
Capital reserve recorded during the years ended 31 December 2016 and

2015 represented the gain/loss on equity transactions with non-controlling

interests.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RESERVES (Cont'd)

Statutory and legal reserves

Under the relevant PRC laws and regulations, PRC companies are required
to allocate 10% of the companies’ net profit to the fund until such fund
reaches 50% of the companies’ registered capital. The statutory reserve
fund can be utilised, upon approval by the relevant authorities, to offset
against accumulated losses or to increase registered capital of the companies,
provided that such fund is maintained at a minimum of 25% of the

companies’ registered capital.

Subsidiary incorporated in Taiwan is required to set aside a minimum 10%
of the subsidiary's profit after taxation to the legal reserve, until the reserve

balance has reached the subsidiary's capital.

Subsidiary incorporated in Macao is required to set aside a minimum of 25%
of the subsidiary's profit after taxation to the legal reserve until the balance
of the reserve reaches a level equivalent to 50% of the subsidiary's capital in

accordance with the Macao Commercial Code #377.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ESE

28. BUSINESS COMBINATION 8. EBEH
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries during the FR-MBRARREMEKERR 2 TH
year as at their respective dates of acquisition are set out as follows: MEERBEAAEBESIMT:
Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
AU R
ZAREE
Notes HK$'000
Pt TET
Property, plant and equipment W% BEREE 12 101
Inventories FE 353
Trade receivables B Z ERIa 622
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables NI 1RE KHE YR 13,785
Cash and bank balances He RIRITHER 4,165
Trade payables EC ) ANE S (81
Other payables and accruals Hofth FE T FRIE K BT B (13,459)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BARBENEZARINEESEER 5486
Non-controlling interests FIERER (2,167)
Goodwill on acquisition Wi o e 14 764
Satisfied by cash AR ER 4,083
Revenue for the year since the acquisition B R FE s 8,338
Loss for the year since the acquisition BlERFEER 793
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28.

BUSINESS COMBINATION (Cont’d)

An analysis of cash flow in respect of the acquisitions is as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR M A

B EBEH (A
BRLRBNRSRESTMOT

HK$'000

TAT

Cash consideration BeRE (2,939)

Cash and bank balances acquired BB e RiRITHER 4,165
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents included AFAREZBFFHREREL

in cash flows from investing activities RekReZEEBMRANEE 1,226
Transaction costs of the acquisition included FAREREBABREREL

in cash flows from operating activities WHEEERZ 5K AR -

1226

Had the combinations taken place at the beginning of the year, the revenue of the

Group and the loss of the Group for the year would have been HK$83,810,000 and

HK$52,282,000 respectively.

Business combinations during the year ended 3| December 2016 included the

HEHEFNEEL AEFZ WA KK
@2 FEEERIS R A838100004

7T 52,282,000/ JT, ©

HEWIFNANBIEFER £54

following material transactions: HEEUATERRS:
@@  On | July 2016, the Group acquired a 50.92% equity interest in Shenzhen @ R216F7RI1B RNEEULHER

Xinyi, which is principally engaged in trading of electronic components in the

PRC for an aggregate of cash consideration of RMB2,490,000 (equivalent to

HK$2,939,000); and

(b)  On 17 November 2016, the Group acquired a 100% equity interest in Beijing (b)

Tianjin, which is principally engaged in operation of movie theatre in the

PRC for an aggregate of cash consideration of RMBI,000,000 (equivalent

to HK$1,144,000). As at 31 December 2016, the cash
RMB1,000,000 was not paid.

consideration of

EREARKE24900007T (8%
742,939,000/ 7T) - W B R II{E
H —HEIZRFENEEEE
FITl 2 R RLZ5092%4E : &

R2016FI1BI7H  AEB AR
B e R EARI0000005T (18
F 1,144,000 7T ) BB IL K
B —HEFERTBEREETR
BEZRR 2B 72016
FNA3IA BReREBAR®K
1,000,0007T & K 32 £+ o

tREEXEXEBRRAA
—E-AEER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ESE

29. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES M. HENELR

2016

HK$'000

FERT

Net assets disposed of: BEHEBEFE:

Cash and bank balances ReRRITER 10,344
Trade receivables B Z R RIE 902
Tax recoverable EEEE 2,339
Prepayments and other receivables A FRIR B H A e R TR 1,986
Trade payables B I RENHKIA (9,840)
Accruals and other payables JEET & A I HL A & 15 3R IE (1,387)
Finance lease liabilities MEMERRE (109)
Non-controlling interests FEE IR AR (2,042)
2,193

Exchange reserves BE 5 225
2,418
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR 2 EE (1,908)
510

Satisfied by: AT B

Cash Be 510
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29.

30.

31

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR M A

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd) 9. HEKBAT (&)
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the disposal BRLENBRARNRE KA SEEY
of subsidiaries is as follows: BRAFE DT -
2016
HK$’000
TER
Cash consideration RerE 510
Cash and bank balances disposed of BEHEZRE MIETES (10,344)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of ERLEMNBRARANRRRESE
the disposal of subsidiaries BYHR L FEE (9,834)
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 0. FARE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have any significant RBERR AEREUEEFEAIA
contingent liabilities. af-
OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 3. KEHERH
(@)  Aslessor @ fERHEA
The Group leases its investment properties (note |3 to the financial AEERBEEMELTHTERE
statements) under operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for REME (B mRMTI3) - &
terms ranging from two to three years. The terms of the leases generally also EENERNTREE=4 1
require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent WK — BRI BB X HRE
adjustments according to the then prevailing market conditions. & RATR R RE & K e B

ME AR

tREEXEXEBRRAA
—E-AEER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M AL

31. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Cont'd) 3l

(@)  Aslessor (Cont'd)

At 31 December 2016, the Group had total future minimum lease

receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling due

ReBaTH (&)
@ MERLBEAE)

R016FE 128318 REBRE
HERFIVAT A HELEA

as follows: SR T 5 AR I B R R &K
ERYGRIEERELT

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET
Within one year —FR 2,703 =
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EZFLEN(BREEEWE) 4,331 =
7,034 -

(b)  Aslessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for terms ranging from

three to fifteen years.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R RS E

31. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Cont'd) 3. REHEZH (A)
(b)  As lessee (Cont'd) (b) HEREBEA (HF)

R20165F 128318 KEBERE
Al HEE S ER THIEEE
HORREEBAS S HEEN

At 3| December 2016, the Group had total future minimum lease payments

under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

N
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT
Within one year —FR 6,670 4933
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EZFREN(BEEEME) 35,677 3,309
After five years hE® 73,434 -
115,781 8,242
32. COMMITMENTS RN Ak
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 31(b) above, the BR EXPHEE3I(b)a it B B TH & AR

Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the reporting period:

M AEERREHRNERNEED

T
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET
Contracted, but not provided for: ERTABE R -
Assets under construction FREE 6,620 -
Leasehold improvement HEMEEE 5,730
12,350

LERE Y EREMERAT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ESE

33.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS B BHAIRE
(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial @ KBRIEUBHRREMEL Tl
statements, the Group had the following transactions with related parties RGN AEBRFRNEBE A
during the year: EITIATRS
2016 2015
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
P E TR TET
Gross rental income from RELEEREFREXEEER LA
Beijing Enterprises Medical and ([EEBREREE]) 2ESRALRE
Health Industry Group Limited*
("BEMH") () 832 -
Loans from a shareholder (if) 175,000 20,000
Interest expense to a shareholder  [AI % B 37 1< 1 8. 7 3% (i) 621 43
Commission fee paid to placing ~ EFNELERE (—HBE—RES
agent, a company controlled
by a director (i) 3,500 -
0) During the year ended 3| December 2016, BEMH rented the office units of 0 REZE2016F 124318 L

the Group for a period of four months with total rent of HK$832,000. BEMH is
the largest shareholder of the Company.

(i)  On 16 December 2016, the Company entered into a loan agreement with a
shareholder; which is a company owned as to 100% by a director, to borrow
HK$ 175,000,000, which was unsecured, interest bearing at 3.0% per annum

and repayable on demand.

On 10 November 2015 and 24 November 2015, the Company entered
into loan agreements with the shareholder mentioned above to borrow
HK$5,000,000 and HK$15,000,000, respectively. The loan was unsecured

interest bearing at 2.5% per annum and repayable on demand.
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33.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

@

©

(Contd)

The interest expenses were charged for the loans from the shareholder
mentioned above at the interest rate specified in the loan agreements (note
23).

(i) On 8 June 2016, the Company and the placing agent entered into a placing
agreement with a placing commission amounted to HK$3,500,000, which was
equivalent to 2.5% of the net proceed of the placing shares. The placing of
shares was completed on 15 August 2016.The placing agent was controlled by

a director of the Company (note (25)).

Outstanding balances with related parties:
() At 3l December 2016, the rental receivable of HK$832,000 from

BEMH was included in other receivables in note |6 to the financial

statements.

(i) Details of the Group's loans from a shareholder as at the end of the

reporting period are included in note 23 to the financial statements.

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

3.

PR M A

BMARZ (&)
@ (&)

RERMEMIEE 2 E 5
B REZRWERF B A Y
(B5E23) ©

(iy  H2016F6A8A - AA A
EREITL—HEE R B
&€ A35000008 T HHE
REEERD 2 FIBFIEFEL
2.5% ° R BLEF20165F8 A 15
Bl ERIERADF—
AEREH (HfFE25)) -

(b) BUATEERARE:

() 20165128318 UL
13 B8 0% PR 1 €832,00078
TERNBRERMTI62
Hoth FE UK IE ©

(iy RBEHR FAEEREE
R R EERN IS wK M
23 e

2016 2015

HK$°000 HK$'000

FTER FERT

Short term employee benefits 2 RS EA 1,670 8,898
Equity-settled share option expense NERGEE 2 BRERS 3,721 =
Pension — defined contribution plans Bke - ERERE - 141
5,391 9,039

Further details of the directors and the chief executive's emoluments are

included in note 8 to the financial statements.

*  For identification purpose only.
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E—FF BN AT RKES -

LRRE X EERMERAT
P e keen 159



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M AL

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY M SRMIAER
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the end ERA eI ARBERRREES
of the reporting period are as follows: g
2016 20165
Financial assets — loans and receivables THEE-BEHREUNE
HK$'000
TERT
Trade receivables B 5 REKRIE 6,652
Financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and SPATENRIE R E KH &K FRIE
other receivables JEHMEE 24247
Cash and cash equivalents RBekReEED 306,398
337,297
Financial liabilities — financial liabilities at amortised cost THEE-ZBEALTEZEHEE
HK$'000
FTET
Trade and bills payables BHRNRIBRENRE 8,202
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals SARMENREREAERAz2REE 24176
Loans from a shareholder RERE R 175,156
207,534
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34.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Cont'd)

2015

Financial assets

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R RS E

M SRMIAER (&)

20156

ETHEE

Loansand  Available-for-sale
receivables financial assets Total

BERK AL E
FEU IR TREE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET TET
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHEEREE - 13,605 13,605
Trade receivables 2 P RWRR 71491 - 71491

Financial assets included in prepayments, T ATEfTFUIE & R EM

deposits and other receivables Y HIE eREE 9,488 = 9,488
Pledged deposits BEAEK 6,388 - 6,388
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED 51,029 - 51,029
138,396 13,605 152,001

Financial liabilities — financial liabilities at amortised cost

EHRE-RBHEAA B2 LHRE

HK$'000

TET

Trade payables g RENRIE 66,063
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals SFARMENREREAERAZ2REE 11523
Finance lease liabilities BEHEAE 129
Loans from a shareholder RERER 20,043
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERITER 25,148
122,906

EtREEXEXEBRRAA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ESE

35.  FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 35.
INSTRUMENTS

SRTAZAABERAABERER

AEEzeRMIAZREBRARE
E(ERAEEEANEBEAEREER

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial instruments, other

than those with carrying amounts that reasonably approximate to fair value, are as

follows: SN EFIAT -
Carrying amounts Fair values
fREE DREE
2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER TAT TER TET
Financial assets THEE
Available-forsale financial assets ~ AJ N E B E E - 13,605 - 13,605
Financial assets included in FAERRKIE RER
prepayment, deposit and other Hfth FEURIE 2
receivables, non-current portion & &L & E - FERNEAE H 4,969 = 3,360 -
4,969 13,605 3,360 13,605
Financial liabilities cHAE
Financial liabilities included in ATAE A FREAR
other payables and accrual, B ERz AR
non-current portion FEENEAER 774 = 719 -

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents, pledged
deposits, trade receivables, trade and bills payables, interest-bearing bank borrowings,
loans from a shareholder, the current portion of financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables and financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals, approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the

short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at
which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing

parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
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35.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

The fair value the non-current portion of financial assets included in prepayment
deposits and other receivables and financial liabilities included in other payables
and accruals have been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows
using rates currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-performance risk for the non-current
portion of other payables and accruals as at 31 December 2016 was assessed to be

insignificant.

The fair values of available-for-sale financial assets are based on cash value of the key

management insurance contracts.

Fair value hierarchy
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's

financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:
As at 3| December 2015

35.

PR M A

ERMIAZARBERAABERER
(4&)

SPAENAFIE e REMEKRFIEY
EREERFT AR MENFIERETE
AzemBENERSDBHOAAE
ENREAREIER  FERR RFH
FHz TRERTZ I EITRBEARKIER
SmETE - M20I16F 128318 K&
BASREEMENFEREFER
ERBBHOTELRBE TG ATE
Ko

AHLESREEC ANEBEDREE
EEEEBRRANZATEBEET

AABERR
THRIRARES BT A2 AR BE
EER:

BAREBEGEZEE:
R2015%F 12431 H

Fair value measurement using
ERATSEETRAAEETE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RERTS  EAAEE EATATEER
H (B AR WA SR
(1) ($208) (£38E) et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET THET
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ FIEIHE R B EE - - 13,605 13,605

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as at 31
December 2016 and 31 December 2015.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements between Level
|, Level 2 and Level 3 (2015: Nil).

M2016F 128318 2015128318 ¢
REBVETIEALBENEZSR
BE-

FRN-FIE FERFELHAGES
BRABETE (015F: F) -

tREEXEXEBRRAA
—E-AEER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M AL

36.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise cash and cash equivalents,
available-for-sale financial assets. The main purpose of these financial instruments is
to raise finance for the Group's operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade and bills payables, which arise

directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are foreign currency
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies

for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group's exposure to foreign exchange risks was primarily related to bank
balances and other receivables and payables denominated in RMB and United States
dollar ("USD"). The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. It manages its foreign currency risk by closely monitoring the movements in

the foreign currency rates.

As HK$ is pegged to USD, the Group considers that the foreign exchange risk
arising from transactions, recognised assets and liabilities denominated in USD is not

significant.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 36.

(Cont'd)

Foreign currency risk (Cont'd)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the reporting period
to a reasonably possible change in the RMB exchange rate (against HK$) on the

Group's loss before tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets).

R RS E

PR EREEBERBUR (&)

SNERBR (A)
TREARNAREER (HET)H

SRERER (ERNEREEL ANEE
2E) NBREEDN

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in  (decrease) in loss
RMB rate before tax
ARWER BRBLATE B
ER/(FE)  #h/ OBd)

% HK$'000
THET
2016 20165
If the HK$ weakens against the RMB WETAARERE 5 204
If the HK$ strengthens against the RMB WATEAREHE (5) (204)
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in  (decrease) in loss
RMB rate before tax
AREEE R FRIERTE 1R
ERCF%)  #Em/ ORd)
% HK$'000
TET
2015 20155
If the HK$ weakens against the RMB BT AREEE 5 631
If the HK$ strengthens against the RMB WETLAREE (5 (631)

EtREEXEXEBRRAA
—B-AFER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R ESE

36.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is the
Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to
credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an

ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to bad debits is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets, which comprise cash and
cash equivalents, pledged deposit and other receivables, arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these

instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties, there
is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by
customer/counterparty, by geographical region and by industry sector. Except for
the other receivables of HK$12,000,000 due from three individuals, there are no
significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group as the customer bases
of the Group's trade receivables are widely dispersed in different sectors and

industries.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to credit risk arising

from trade receivables are disclosed in note |8 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity
planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its financial instruments and
financial assets (e.g, trade and bills receivables) and projected cash flows from

operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and

flexibility through other interest-bearing loans including the loan from a shareholder:
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BF RS R MY &
36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 3% HMEEREEBERBK (£)
(Cont’d)
Liquidity risk (Cont'd) RBEERERE (&)
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting TERERETAEESREBENRERR
period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows: BRI E R FRATENE B EAR »
e
At 31 December 2016
R016F12831 8
Lessthan 3 to less than
On demand 3 months 12 months | to 5 years Total
MEANRE IFUE
REX  3MEANR Z12M8A 5 Azt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FTHER TER FTER THER
Trade and bills payables EFHRUTERFR - 8,02 - - 8,202
Other payables H bR TIE - 23402 - 774 24,176
Loans from a shareholder BRER 175,156 - - - 175,156
175,156 31,604 - 774 207,534
At 31 December 2015
R20I5F12A318
Lessthan3to 3 to less than
On demand 3 months 12 months [ to 5 years Total
AR L 1F0E
BREX  3EAUA ENMARA 5 @t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEL TR TEL TR
Trade and bils payables EIRNFERER - 66,063 - - 66,063
Other payables H it FE - 11523 - - 11523
Finance lease libilties BEANERE - n - 67 139
Loans from a shareholder REER 20,043 125 324 - 20492
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STERITER 771 25315 = = 26,086

20814 103,098 34 67 124303
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M AL

36.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios

in order to support its business and maximise shareholders' value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 3| December 2016 and 3| December 2015.

The Group monitors capital using total liabilities to the ratio of total assets. The total

liabilities to total assets ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as follows:

36.

PR EREEBERBR (&)

EXxEE

AEEEAEEZ T BREABRASE
EREC 2 R ERRRER L RARE
EBREIFRBRRERZAERE-

AEEERHERERE WHLERR
B EEN RSB EL AR
AEEREAERRFIRE RS [
REREERFEITHRD - LR
FEBREE AEEHREETINGDE
IR TE - NE E20165F 128318 %2015
FRAIBLFEITRAEEEAREA
B BERLBRELE

AEBEARARRABEEERE
Ao RBEHK BEEREEEY
M

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000
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Total liabilities BmafE 213817 135,765
Total assets BEE 452,446 247,123
Ratio tp =& 47% 55%
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37.

38.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Acquisition of MetaSpace (Beijing) Air Dome Corp™* (“MetaSpace”)

On 16 January 2017, the Company, through an indirectly 809% owned subsidiary,
entered into a capital injection agreement with MetaSpace, a company listed in the
National Equities Exchange and Quotations of the PRC, to subscribe 35,000,000
new ordinary shares of MetaSpace at the price of RMB4 per ordinary share for a
total capital injection of RMB140,000,000 (equivalent to HK$156,800,000). Upon
completion of capital injection, the Group will hold a 51.66% equity interest (group
the Group's effective equity interest of 41.33%) in MetaSpace and MetaSpace will

become a subsidiary of the Group.

Because the acquisition was not completed at the date of approval of the financial

statements, no further details are disclosed about the acquisition.

Purchase of a non-controlling interest in Zhong Hu Dingfeng

On |7 January 2017, Zhong Hu Sports entered into a transfer agreement with
Beijing Dingfeng Ronghe Investment Management Limited* (It R ERMEREE
BB R 2 7, "Beijing Dingfeng”), a shareholder of Zhong Hu Dingfeng. Pursuant to
which, Zhong Hu Sports agreed to purchase and Beijing Dingfeng agreed to sell 40%
non-controlling shareholding interest in Zhong Hu Dingfeng at the consideration of
RMB2,000,000 (equivalent to HK$2,248,000). The transfer of shares was completed
in February 2017. Upon completion of the share transfer agreement, Zhong Hu

Dingfeng become an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Zhong Hu Sports.

Loans from a shareholder

In March 2017, the Group entered into new loan agreements with companies
controlled by a director of the Company, which is also substantial shareholder of the
Company, with a total amount of HK$88,000,000. The loans from a shareholder was

unsecured, interest bearing at 4.8% per annum and repayable on demand.

* For identification purpose only.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform to current year's

presentation.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% #R 3R BT &
39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 9. AATZPBEMRRE
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAERT FHEIT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment I ER NG 4 6
Investments in subsidiaries KRB RAR 2R E 91,875 89,340
Total non-current assets FREBEELE 91,879 89,346
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Due from subsidiaries JE BT /8 A R FR IR 115,372 15919
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BRFIE  2e R HE M EUGRIE 258 165
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReZEEY 207,487 4,583
Total current assets MEEELE 323,117 20,667
CURRENT LIABILITIES nEaE
Due to subsidiaries AN I=PNGIE R 2,553 2,340
Other payables and accruals HAi A RIB R ETE R 2,018 211
Loans from a shareholder BREREK 175,156 20,043
Total current liabilities mEEEER 179,727 22,594
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) FREBEE/(BE) 143,390 (1927)
Net assets EEFE 235,269 87419
EQUITY g
Equity attributable to owners of the parent BAREAABGES
Share capital R 5,84l 4,689
Reserves i 229,428 82,730
Total equity iR 235,269 87419
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R RS E

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Cont'd)  39. ZAATZHBMRE (#)

(@) Reserves at Company level @ ARAREENREE
Company
NG
Retained
earnings/
Share Share-based accumulated
premium  payment reserve losses Total
D4
RERMN REEBF,/
R EE FHRE R BR st
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TET TET TET TEL
Balances at | January 2015 20154 | A1 B K45k 176,800 2,458 10,709 189967
Dividend BRE - - - -
Release upon cancellation of EREBRET HAD
vested share options - (2458) 2458 -
Acquisition of a subsidiary W E AR 94,975 = = 94975
Loss for the year FRER - - (202212) (202212)
Balance at 3| December 2015 M2015F 12431 B & g4 271775 - (189,045) 82,730
Balances at | January 2016 R2016F | A1 BB &R 271,775 - (189,045) 82,730
lssue of shares BTt 155,028 - - 155,028
Equity-settled share-based R B R AR
payment arrangements REBSNRZH = 11,699 = 11,699
Loss for the year FNER - - (20,029) (20,029)
Balance at 3| December 2016 2016512431 B R &% 426,803 11,699 (209,074) 229,428
40. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 40. HEMBRE
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of FBHRNWI7FIABREEZSH
directors on 28 March 2017. R T
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
REWEFH

As at 31 December 2016 720165 12H31H
Percentage
of interest
attributable to
Location Use Tenure the Group
AREEMN
i B R# A BRAEDL
Office Units 10 and I on | Ith Floor, Office premises for rental Medium term lease 100
Harbour Centre, epiE RN E S hEMEE
No.25 Harbour Road
Wan Chai
Hong Kong
B
B
BRESH
JEREN
IR IE
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